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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Member of the
Municipal Legislature

San Sebastián, Puerto Rico

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the govemmental activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Municipality of San Sebastiiín, Puerto Rico, as ofJune
30, 2015, and the related notes to the ñnancial statements, which collectively comprise the Municipality's
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or enor. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.



Summary of Opinions

Opinion Unit
Govemmental Activities
General Fund
Head Start Fund
Debt Service Fund
Loans Fund
Capital Improvements Funds
C)ther Govemmental Funds

Typr aI Qp!¡¡pn
Qualified
Unmodified
Unmodified
Unmodified
Unmodified
Unmodified
Unmodified

Basis for Qualified Opinion on Governmental Actiüties and Note Disclosure Regarding Pension Plan

The net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources in govemmental activities of the
government-wide Statement of Net position, and pension expense for the current period change in that
liability in govemmental activities of the govemment-wide Statement of Activities were derived from the
application of the proportional share included in the unaudited financial statements, notes and required
supplementary information of the Employees' Retirement System of the Govemment of the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, cost-sharing multiple-employer pension plan. We were unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the proportional share used to determine the deferred
outflows/inflows of resources, net pension liability, and pension expenses of the governmental activities
and the information disclosed in the notes of the pension plan. Consequently, we were unable to determine
whether any adjustments to these amounts and disclosures were necessary. The net pension liability and

deferred outflows/inflows of resources represent 58 percent and 100 percent, of the total liabilities, deferred
outflows/inflows of resources, respectively, as ofJune 30, 2015, while pension expense represents 9 percent

of total expenses for the fiscal year then ended.

Qualilied Opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter discussed in the "Basis for Qualified Opinion
on Govemmental Activities and Note Disclosure Regarding Pension Plan" paragraph, the financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
govemmental activities of the Municipality, as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial
position thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Unmodified Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the

respective financial position of each major fund, and the ag$egate remaining fund information of the
Municipality of San Sebastián, Puerto Rico, as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis-of-Matter

N ew ly Adopte d S tandard s

As discussed in Note I item O to the ñnancial statements, the Municipality adopted new accounting
guidance, Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No- 68, Accounting and
Financial Reponing for Pensions -an amendment of GASB No. 27, and GASB No.7l, Pension Transition

for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - and amendment of GASB Statemenf No.

ó8, during fiscal year 2015. Our opinions are not modiñed with respect to this matter.



Restatement of Prior Year Financial Statements

As discussed in Note 22 to the financial statements, the 2014 financial statements have been restated for
the implementation of GASB Statements Nos 68 and 71. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this
matter.

Other Matters

Re q u i red Supp Ie men ta ry InIo rma t ¡ on

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, and employees' retirement systems

information on pages 4-15, pages 59-60 and 61-62 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the

Govemmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial repofing
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods ofpreparing the information and comparing the inforration for consistency
with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we

obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance. We were unable to apply certain limited procedures to the

required supplementary information related to employees' retirement systems information applicable to
Municipality, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March23,2ol6,
on our consideration of the Municipality of San Sebastián, Puerto Rico's intemal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant

agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of intemal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That repon is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in considering Municipality of Sebastiiín,

Puerto Rico's intemal control over financial reporting and compliance.

=
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COMi'ONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIÁN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2015

The management of Municipality of San Sebastían, Puerlo Rico (Municipality) offers th¡s narrat¡ve overview and analysis of

the financial act¡v¡t¡es of the Municipali§ for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. The Management's Discussion and Analysis

(MD&A) ¡s des¡gned to focus on the current year activities, resulting changes and cunently known facts, and much of the

infomation is comparable to prior year. This MD&A should be read in conjunction with the accompanying basic financial

statements and the accompany¡ng notes to those f¡nanc¡al statements.

This MDM is prepared in order to comply with the reporting model required by Governmental Account¡ng Standards Board

Statement No. 34 and, among other purposes, to prov¡de the f¡nanc¡al stalements users w¡th the following major information:

. a broader basis in focusing important issues;

' acknowledgement of an overview of the Municipality's financ¡al act¡vit¡es;
. provide for an evaluat¡on of ¡ts financial condition as of the end of the indicated fiscal year, compared with pdor year results;
. ¡dent¡f¡cat¡on of uses of funds in the financing of the Munic¡pality's variety ol activities and;
¡ assess managements ability to handle budgetary functions.

GOVEBNMENTAL ACTIVITIES - FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The following are key financial highlights for the fiscal year:

. The Municipality's assets exceeded its liabilities at June 30, 2015 by $16,380,246, and at June 30, 2014 by $16,943,355, as

restated;
. The Municipality's total net position decrease by $563,109 during fiscal year 2014-2015;
. As of June 30, 2015, the Municipality's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balance of $13,421,485, an

increase of $1,033,9,+Í) lrom the pr¡or year;
. At June 30,2015, the Statement of Net Pos¡tion presented an unrestricted deficit of ($45,587,220);
. The Municipality's capital assets inventory ¡ncrease as a result ol th¡s yea/s operat¡ons. Capital assets as of June 30, 2015

were $67,812,290 (net of accumulated depreciation);
. The ¡nvestmenl ¡n capital assets for th¡s year was $51,165,184 (net ol related debt);
. Loans princ¡pal payments were $1,710,000 and $1,550,000 in 2014 and 2013, respectively.

BUSINES$TYPE ACTIVITIES -FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

. The total net posit¡on of the proprietary fund amounted to $1,157,564, of which $678,626 are ¡nvested ¡n cap¡tal assets, net

of related debt, $326,241 are restricted for lhe operalions ol federally funded programs and $ 152,697 are unrestr¡cted;
. The total net position of the proprietary fund increased by $47,324 during the fiscal year ended on June 30, 2015.

OVERVIEW OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analys¡s is ¡ntended to serve as an introduct¡on to the Mun¡cipality's f¡nancial statements. The Mun¡c¡pality's

basic financial statements comprise three componenls: govemment-wide financ¡al statements; fund linancial statements; and

notes to the financial statements. Th¡s report also contains other supplementary ¡nfomation in addition lo the bas¡c financial

statements themselves.



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASNÁN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2015

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The govemment-w¡de financial statements are composed of: (1)the statement of net posit¡on and (2) the statement of activities.

These financial statements can be lound immediately following this MD&A. These financial statements are designed to provide

readers with a broad overview of the Municipality's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

The purpose of the statement of net position is to attempt to report all assets owned and all liabilities owed by the Municipality.

The Mun¡c¡pal¡ty reports of all ol ¡ts assets when ¡t acqu¡res ownership over the assets and reports all of ¡ts l¡ab¡l¡t¡es when they

are incurred. For example, the Municipal¡ty reports bu¡ldings and ¡nfrastructure as assets, even though they are not available

to pay the obl¡gat¡ons incuned by the Municipality. On the other hand, the Municipality reports liabilities, such as claims and
judgments, bonds and notes payable, obligations under capital leases, compensaled absences and certa¡n accounts payable

and accrued liabilities, even though these liabilities might not be paid until several f¡scal years into the future.

The d¡fference between the Municipality's total assets and total l¡ab¡l¡ties reported in the stalement ol net posit¡on is presented

as nei position, which is similar to the total owners' equ¡ty reported by a commercial enterprise in its linancial statements.

Although the purpose of the Municipali§ is not to accumulate net pos¡tion, as th¡s amount increases or decreases over time,

such amounl represents a useful ¡nd¡catorof whetherthe financial position of the Municipality is either ¡mprov¡ng or deter¡orat¡ng,

respectively.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

The statement of activ¡t¡es presents ¡nformation showing how the Municipali§'s net position changed during the fiscal year

ended June 30, 2015, by presenting all of the Municipal¡tys revenues and expenses. As previously discussed, the items

reported in the statement of act¡v¡t¡es are measured in a manner similar to the approach used by a commerc¡al enterprise in

that revenues are recognized when eamed or establ¡shed criler¡a are satisfied, and expenses are recorded when incurred by

the Municipality. Consequently, revenues are reported even when they may not be collected for several months after lhe end

of the fiscal year and expenses are recorded even though they may not have used cash during the current year.

Although the statement of activities looks different from a commercial enterprise's income statement, the difference is only in

fomat, not substance. Whereas the bottom l¡ne in a commercial enterprise represents ¡ts net income, the Mun¡cipality reports

an amount described as net change in net posit¡on, which is essentially the same concept.

The focus ol the statement ol act¡v¡t¡es ¡s on the net cost of various act¡vities provided by the Municipal¡ty. The statement begins
with a column that identifies the cost of each of the Mun¡c¡pal¡ty's major functions. Another column identil¡es the revenues that

are specifically related to the class¡l¡ed governmenlal functions. The difference belween the expenses and revenues related to

specific functionlprograms identifies the extent to which each function of the Municipality draws from general revenues or is

self-f¡nanc¡ng through fees, intergovemmental aid, and other sources of resources.

This statement also presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenuesfor each funct¡on of the Municipality.



COI,IMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASNÁN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAH ENDED JUNE 30, 2Of5

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Both ol the government-wide financial statements of the Munic¡pal¡ty are principally supported by taxes and ¡ntergovemmental

revenues. The Municipality's activities include; general government, publ¡c safety, publ¡c works, culture, recreation, health and

welfare, and interesls. Property taxes, volume of business taxes, sales taxes, and state and federal grants linance most of these

activities.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Municipal¡ty's fund financ¡alstatements consist of: (l)the balance sheet - govemmentalfunds, (2)the statement of revenues,

expend¡tures and changes in fund balances - govemmental funds, (3) the statement ol net pos¡tion - proprietary fund, (4) the

statement of revenues, expenses and net change - proprietary fund, and (5) the statement of cash flows - proprietary fund. These

financial statements report the f¡nanc¡al pos¡tion, the results of operations and cash flows of the Municipality's governmental and

proprietary funds, with an emphasis on the Municipality's major govemmental and proprietary funds.

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to ma¡nta¡n control over resources that have been segregated for specific

activit¡es or objectives. The Municipality, like most other state and local govemments, uses fund accounting to ensure and

demonstrate compliance with finance.related legal requirements. Each fund is considered an independent fiscal ent¡ty accounted

for within a set of self-balanc¡ng accounts that compnse ¡ts assets, iiabilities, fund equity, revenue, and expenditures. Fund

accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used to a¡d management ¡n demonstrat¡ng compl¡ance

with legal, financial and contractual provisions.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The Municipali§'s basic services are reported ¡n the govemment fund financialstatements. The government funds are reported

us¡ng an accounting method called modified accrual account¡ng, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can

readily be converted into cash. Governmental funds are used lo account for essent¡ally the same functions reported as

govemmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial

stalements, governmental fund f¡nanc¡al statements locus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well

as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a
govemmenl's near-term financing requirements. Because ihe focus of governmental funds is narrower than thal of the
governmenlwide linancial statements, ¡l ¡s useful to compare the ¡nformation presented for governmental funds with similar

informat¡on presented for govemmental act¡vit¡es ¡n the govemmenlwide financ¡al statements. By doing so, readers may bener

understand the long-term ¡mpact of the govemmenl's near-term financ¡ng dec¡s¡ons.

The Municipality adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been

provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance w¡th th¡s budget.

PROPRIETARY FUND

The proprietary lund is a fund used to report the financial position, results of operation and cash llows of Villa Soigal (Project

No. 63-29-665705492,01-3), ¡s a housing development consisting of 120 dwelling un¡ts located in San Sebastián.



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASNÁN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PROPRIETABY FUND (CONTINUED)

The project is owned by the Mun¡cipality, but its operations are carried out by a pr¡vate management agent unrelated to the

Municipality. The housing development project ol V¡lla Soigal has been designed to ass¡st various segments of the general

publ¡c ¡n obtaining adequate and reasonable priced rental housing. The project operates under financing through the Sect¡on

I New Construction and Substantiat Rehabilitation Program of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development and

the Section 515 Rural Rental Housing Loans Program of the U.S. Department of Agriculture. The purpose of Villa Soigal is to
provide adequate housing to low-income residents of the Munic¡pal¡ty.

The act¡v¡ties of Villa Soigal have been reported as a proprietary fund ¡n the accompanying basic financial statements s¡nce

GAAP permits the use of enterprise funds to report any activity for which a fee is charged to external users of goods or services,

regardless of whether the government ¡ntends to fully recover the cost of the goods or services provided. Thus, ¡t ¡s common

to use proprietary fund report¡ng to account for services where the govemment intends to recover only a portion of its costs

through fees or user charges.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the GWFS, but in more detail.

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and

fund f¡nanc¡al statements.

OTHER INFOBMATION

ln addition to the bas¡c f¡nancial statements and accompanying notes, th¡s report also presents certa¡n required supplementary

¡nformat¡on conta¡ning budget to actual compar¡sons for the general and major funds.



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALIW OF SAN SEBASNÁN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAB ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

GOVERNMET'IT.WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

GOVERNMENTAL NET POSITION

As noted earlier, net pos¡t¡on may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. ln the case of the

Municipality, governmental act¡v¡ties assets exceeded liabilities by $16,380,246 as of June 30, 20'15, versus $16,943,355, as

restated, as of June 30, 2014. Business-type activities assets exceeded liabilities by $1,157,564 as of June 30, 2015, versus

$1,110,240 as of June 30, 2014. Our analysis below focuses on the net posit¡on (Table 1) and changes in net position of the

Municipality's governmental activit¡es and business-type activities.

Govemmenbl Ac{ivities Business{vD€ Activilies
Table'l
Statemeni ol ¡bt Posit¡on

Curent a¡d non.cufrent assets
Capital assets

ToblAssels

D,eÉred or¡lffows ol fesources

Curent liab¡liües

Long-tem liab¡lilies

Tobl L¡abilities

DeÉfred lnf,ows ol resourc€§
Deñred lnf,ovrs ol resource§"
felat€d to pens¡o0
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lnveslment in capihl assets, nei
ol rehted debt
Resticlsd
Unresticted (Deficit)

Tobl tlet Position
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____llB9,e86 ______l!l,5se

5,105,608 5,535,256
67,601,666 63,568,710

72tr07,274 69,103,966

68p22. 111,243

3¡10,69i1

51,165,184 50,134,025
108g2,282 3,652,297

|145,587,220) (36,842,967)

I16380,246 __§lqp€,3r5

$ 512,519 $ 497,902
1,'t90,033 1,320,556

-1102552 _____!!!!458

$20,372,n8 $ 19,379,549

69,002,323 68,345,874

___8e¡75¡q _____ülÉ,48

_______4lsss

5,139,188 5,607,749
68,113,074 64¿04,435

73?52?62 69,812,184

6$n 11t,243

}O,693

51,843,810 50,818,&56

11,128,523 3,999,502
(45,4íX,523) (s6,764,763)

s17,5i17,810 I18,C3,595

33,580 72,493

511,408 635,725
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIÁN

MANAGEMENT'S D|SCUSS|oN AND ANALYSTS (CONTTNUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

GOVERNMENT.WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The largest port¡on of the Municipality's net position rellects its ¡nvestment ¡n cap¡tal assets (e.9. land, bu¡ldings, mach¡nery and

equ¡pment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets st¡ll outstand¡ng. These capilal assets are used to provide services

to c¡t¡zens; consequently these assets are not available lor future spend¡ng. lt should also be noted that the resources required to
repay the related debt must be provided from olher sources, s¡nce the cap¡tal assets themselves cannol be used io liquidale these

liabilities. An additional portion of the Municipality's net position represenls resources thal are subject to extemal restrictions on

how lhey may be used.

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Govemmental activilies decreased the Mun¡cipal¡ty's net pos¡t¡on. Key elements ol this decrease are as follows: the Munic¡pality's

govemmental activities had net expenses of ($19,138,707). However, these services are intended io be primarily lunded by taxes,

as opposed to charges for seruices and granls, and those taxes and other general revenues did not exceed net expenses by

$563,109. ln addition, business-type activities increased the Municipality's net position by $47,324.

The cost of all governmental activities and business-type activities this year was $26,002,560 and $610,578, respectively. Table
2 presents the cost ol each ol the Municipali§'s largest programs.

Gov.mm.nt l Aclivilies Bus¡ness.lyDe Aclivitbs Totál

Tabh 2
Sbtarcnt of ActiYitieE

2014,a3
2015 reetabd

2014,se
i¿atáiéd

Revenues
Progran revenues:

Grants and conüibuüqls
Charge for sefvÉes

Gefleral ¡€venues:

Propedy laxes
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Tob¡ revenues

Ep€0ses
Generalgo\€mment
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Nel dEnge
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ilet p€iüon - eiding
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¡ 16,380246

$ 632.292 $ 14,024,163
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,,106,185

25,497,495

2,495,019
15,558,576
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1,293

635,509

mr5

s 13,462,417

1,110,793

5,662,097
2,r53557
2,352,948

740,152
526,200
89,189

26,097,353

8,357276
r,328,676
6,242,019
2,t75,110
6,m,753

575,909
,,156,395

26,6t3,138

(5r5,785)

18,053,595

¡ 17,537¡10

9,r65,356
611,676

5,975,928
1,185290
6,875,152

1,063,034

24,876,4i]6

2,480,569
14,462,786

$ 16,9433ss

575,909
34,669

610,578

47,324
t,110240

¡ 1,157564

57/,908

62t,059

14,450

1,095,790

¡ t,110¿4n



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAI'I SEBASTIÁN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAB ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

G0vEBNMENT-WIDE FTNANCTAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

2015 Revenues

g"¡ z"/" 
o"t"

ñ1
c Grants and contributions

r Charges lor services

¡¡ Property taxes

E irunicipal license tax

E Sales and use tax

u Other local taxes

!¡ interest and investrnent eam¡ngs

É Miscellaneous

2015 Expenditures

¡ General government

c Public safety

! Publ¡c works

¡ Culture and recreation

¡ Healh and welfare

v Publ¡c Hous¡ng and Welfare

Y lnterest on long{erm debb

10



COi'MONWEALTH OF PUERTO BICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASNÁN

I¿IANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOB THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

GOVERNMENT.WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Approximately forty-two percent (42%) of the Municipality's govemmenlal act¡vities and bus¡ness-type act¡v¡ties total revenue

came Írom taxes, while fifty-two percent (52%) resulted from grants and contribut¡ons. Federal grants represent forty-four percent

(44%) ol the governmental activit¡es grants revenues. The Municipality's govemmental activities and bus¡ness-type activities

expenses included items such as general government, publ¡c safety, public works, culture and recreat¡on, health and welfare,

public housing and welfare, and interest on long term debts.

Approximately thirty-one percent (31olo) of total expenses resulted lrom general government, twentyjour percent (24%) from

public works, eight percent (8%)from culture and recreation and twenty-s¡x percent (26%)from health and welfare.

GOVEBNMENT FUND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legalAs noted earlier, the Mun¡c¡pality

requirements.

Tabh 3
Bahnce Sheet

Assetsr

Tohl Major Funds

Tohloher Funds

Tohlassets

Liabilities:

Tohl Maior Funds
Total Other Füñds

Tobl Liabililies

Delered lnfl ows Resourcesl

Total Mayor Funds

fohl Oher Funds

Tolal Delered lnfows Resources

Fund Bahnces:
Restided
Committed

Assigned
Umss¡gned

Combined total tund balances

fobl lhb¡lit¡es, debned inf,orvs
and fund báláñcés

$ 18,596,293 $ 16,491,0s8't,917,200 2,898,183

¡ 20,513¡93 I 19,389,241

$ 5,149,724
609,118

5,758,842

1,128,145
205,t21

1,333,166

5,258,82
4,800,000

743,460
2,619,203

13,421,485

$ 4,839,356
1,203,494

6,042,850

847,990
110,859

958,849

5,952,734-

611,065
5,823,743

12,§7,542

¡ 2015

¡ 2014

Tohl Tohl DefeÍed Tolal

Asseb Liabtilies lrforvs Fund
Bahnces

120,5!!¿L __9_-§n8e¿4

The focus of the Municipality's governmental lunds is to provide information on near-lerm inflows, outflows, and balances of

spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Munic¡pal¡ty's f¡nanc¡ng requirements. ln part¡cular, unreserved

fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a govemment's net resources available for spending at the end of ¡ts fiscal year.

At June 30, 2015 the Mun¡cipality's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $13,421,485, an increase of

$1,033,943 from the prior year.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASNÁN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2015

GOVERNMENT FUND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The Municipality has an unassigned fund balance of $2,619,203 in its General Fund. The remainder of the balance is restricted,

committed and assigned to indicate that ¡t is not available for new spending because it has already been comm¡tted; (a) to liquidate

prior year obligations ($743,460), (b) to pay debt serv¡ce ($1,261,264), (c) for capital improvements ($4,800,000) and (d) for other

restricted purposes ($3,997,558).

fablé 4
Chanoes in Fund Bahnces

Revenues:

fobl revenues - Major Funds

fotal revenues - Oher Funds

Combined tolal reveñues

Ependitures:
Tohl ependitures - Malor Funds
Tohl ependilures - Oüer Funds

Cornbined tolal expenditures

Oher ñnancing soufces (uses):

Oüer financhg sources - Major Funds

Oüer financhg sources - Oher Funds

Combined oher financing sources
(uses), nei

Nel áanges in fund balance

Fund Balance - beginning

Fund Bahnce - end¡ng

2015

$ 22,293,821
2,728,392

25,022,213

22,539,210
3,764,060

26,303,270

1,760,101

554,899

2,3r5,000

1,033,9$

12,§7,542

! l!d4¡&5_

2014

$ 21,586,234
5,074,360

26,660,594

21,405,520
7,097,42

28,502p42

790,100

939,900

1,730,000

(112,348)

12,499.890

_§_l!,38U,542

30,000,000

25,0@,0m

20,000,0m

15,000,0m

10,000,0m

¡2015

e2014

PROPHIETARY FUND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

At June 30, 2015, the total assets of proprietary fund amounted to $1,702,552, which consisted principally of: (1) cash and

¡nvestments of $479,758, and (2) capital assets ol $l,190,033, net ol accumulated depreciation.

At June 30, 2015, the total liabilit¡es of the proprietary fund amounted to $5¿14,988, which consisted of: (1) mortgage notes payable

of $5'l 
'1,¿108, and (2) accounls payable and accrued liab¡l¡ties of $33,580.

The total net position ol proprietary fund amounted to $1,'157,564 at June 30, 2015, of which $678,626 are ¡nvested in capital

assets, and $326,241 are reserved for program act¡v¡ties.

12
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASNÁN

MANAGEMENT'S DTSCUSSToN AND ANALYSTS (CoNT|NUED)

FOB THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2015

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Budget and aclual comparison schedules are provided in the Basic Financ¡al Statements for lhe General Fund. The Budgetary
Comparison Schedule of the General Fund shows the original adopted budgets, the final revised budget, actual results, and
var¡ance between the final budget and actual results lor the general and major special revenue funds. Table 5 summarizes the
results of the General Fund's Budgetary Comparison Schedule:

Table 5
Actual

Final Budget Amounts

Total revenues

Total expenditures, encumbrances and
other linanc¡ng uses

Ercess or deficiency

$ 16,762,496 $ 16,866,386 $ 103,890

16.762.496 15.114.643 1.647.853

$ - $ 1.75f.7«l $ f.751.7¡13

The odginal and the linal budget ol lhe General Fund lor the liscal year ended June 30, 2015 amounted to $16,762,496. Over
the course of the f¡scal year, the Municipality revised the General Fund's budget in order to include, if necessary, increases and
decreases in revenues that were identilied during lhe course of the fiscal year based on current developments that pos¡tively

affecled the Mun¡cipality's finances. The laws and regulations of the Commonwealth mandate a balanced budget.

The total actual revenues (budgetary basis) of the general fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 were $16,866,386, which
is$103,890 more than lhe budgeted revenues. ln addition, the total actual expenditures and otherfinancing sources (budgetary

basis) of the general fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 were $15,1 '14,6,13, which is approx¡mately ten percenl (10%),

or $1,647,853 less than the budgeted expenditures.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The Municipalitys ¡nvestment ¡n cap¡tal assets for ¡ts govemmental type activit¡es as of June 30, 20f5 amounted to $67,812,290
(net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets ¡ncludes land, buildings, ¡mprovements, fumiture and fixtures,

veh¡cles and Euipment, and infraslructure. The lotal increase in the Municipality's ¡nvestment in capital assets for the current
fiscal year was $786,972 (net of ret¡rements). Table 6 present the major classes of capital assets.

Table 6
Cap¡tal Assets

Construct¡on in progress

Land

Buildings and building improvements

Fumiture and lixtures
Vehicles and equipment

lnfrastructure

Toial Assets

$ 2,007,577

6,071,776
,+3,632,605

685,855
1,093,003

14.318.474

$_67.E12¿90



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASNÁN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2OI5

LONG.TERM DEBT

At June 30, 2015, the Mun¡c¡pal¡ty had total ol $67,601,666 in general obligations, pension liabilities and others outstanding debts,

as shown in Table 7. Of this amount, $21,007,000 comprises debt backed by the full faith and cred¡t of the govemment,

$42,573,801 correspond to the nel pens¡on liab¡l¡ty and $4,020,865 is other obligations.

Table 7
Lonq Term D,ebts

General obligations bonds and notes

Property Tax Debt - Law 42

Property Tax Debt - Law 146

Estimated landfill closure and post-

closure care cost
Compensated absences

Cla¡ms and Judgments

Net pension liability

Total Long Term D,ebts

$ 21,007,000

861,291

128,635

179,817

2,814,357
36,765

42.573.801

$_07,00L060

The Mun¡cipal¡ty ¡s required to lim¡t the amount of general obligat¡on debt to 10% ol the totalassessment of property located within

the Municipality in order for the bonds to be repaid with the proceeds of properly laxes restricted for debt serv¡ces. other
obl¡galions include accrued vacalion and sick leave and advances of property laxes. More detailed information about the
Municipality's long-term liab¡l¡ties is presented ¡n the notes to the financial statemenls. The Municipality continues to meet its
financial needs through prudent use of its revenues and creative debt financing programs.

Pension Obligation

During the fiscal year 2014-2015, the Municipali§ has adopted the GASB 68, Accounting and Repoñing for Pensrbns. This

statement replaces GASB 27, Accounting for Pesions by State and Local Govemnents and requires that an employer report a
net pension liability and related changes in the net pension liability, instead of a net pens¡on obligation.

ECONOI,IIC FACTOBS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

Local, national and ¡ntemat¡onal econom¡c factors ¡nfluence the Municipality's revenues. Positive economic growth ¡s conelated
with increased revenues from property taxes, volume ol business taxes, sales taxes, charges lor services, as well as state and

federal grants. Economic growth in the local economy may be measured by a variety of indicators such as employment growth,

unemployment, new construction, assessed valuation, and olher revenues.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the Municipalitfs budget for the 2015 fiscal year. Some cost reductions helped
fund improvements ol existing facilities, public safety and works, econom¡c development initiatives and human service
¡mprovements.

14



oofiloilwEAt-rH oF ruERTo R¡co
TIUNTOPAUTY OF SAN SEBA§NÁN

ilAr{AGE[E[rS USCUSSTON A,ilD ANALYS]S (CONIUü,ED)

FOR I}IE FISCAL YEAR EI{I'ED JUNE 30, 2015

BEOUE!¡I'!¡ FOR I}IFORIIAIP}I

This finarrcial rcport h deshned to pro,ide a general overuiew of üe MuniÍpalil¡/s finances lor all ürose with an inbres in üre

gwemmenfs fnances. Quesli¡ns conceming ary of he infomalion pwiied in hb repod or requesb for additional inlormalion

contact he Municipalftfs Finance Depanmeil at (784 8Ss15$.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

I,IUNICIPALIW OF SAN SEBASTIÁN
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Govemmenlal
Activities

Business-type
Activities Total

ASSETS

Cash and ¡nvesfnents
Cash with fiscal agent
Bece¡vables:

Municipal license taxes
Sales and use taxes
Property taxes
Rent, licenses and permits

lntergovernmental

lnterest, fines and penatties

Federal grants

others
Other curreni assets

Capital assets:

Land, ¡mprovements, and conskuct¡on in progress

Other capital assets, net of depreciation

Total capital assets

Oher non-curreni assets

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES. PENSION

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Bonds and noles payable

Accrued interests
Due to govemmental units
Uneamed revenues - Munic¡pal license taxes
Unavailable revenues - Federal grants

Long-term l¡ab¡l¡t¡es:

Due within one year

Due in more üan one year

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED I]{FLOWS OF RESOURCES. PENSIO]i¡

NEf POSMOil
lnvested in capital assets, net ol related debt
Restricted for:

Debt service
Other purposes

Unrestr¡cted

TOTAL NEf POSITION

$ 11,180,037

6,728,007

517,298

97,349
28,409

119,695

225,045

622,645
282,744

59,030

't9.860.259

8,079,353

59.732.937

67.812.290

87.672.549

1.823.986

1,317,929

1,425,000

536,854
,|ii6,359

r,389,466

68,322

2,016,807
65.584.859

72.25.596

3/O.693

51,165,184

1,261,264
9,541,018

145.587.220\

u!,iu0¿{6

$ 479,758 $ 11,659,795
- 6,728,007

12,583

3.540

495.881

58,350
r.r 31.683

1.190.033

16.638

1.7ü2.552

33,580

121,957

389.451

5/t4.988

678,626

326,241
152.697

s f.157.564

517,298
97,349

28,409
119,695

225,045

622,645
282,744
71,613

3,540

20.356.140

8,137,703

60.864.620

69.002,323

16.638

89.375,101

1.823.986

1,351,509
1,425,000

536,854
,136,359

1,389,466
68,322

2,138,764

65.974.310

73.320.584

340.691!

51,8€,810

1,261,2U
9,867,259

(45.,l34.523)

§ll"r3¿810

The notes to the financ¡al statements are an ¡ntegral part of this statement.
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COI'I'ONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

IiIUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASNÁN
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

JUNE 30,2015

Proqram Rewnueg
Net (Expen8€) Rovcnue and

Chanqo ¡n llst Posil¡on

Chargss lor

Sefv¡ce8

oplrei¡ng

Grants and

Conlributions

Cap¡tal

Granl3 and Govéfnmental

Contributions Activ¡ties

159,874

$ (8,08s,576)

(1,328,676)
(6,082,145)

{2,175,110)
1u5,474)

(1.121.726)

(1 9.1 38.7071

5,662,097
2,153,557

2,352,948

740,'t52
7,055,009

524,471
87,364

18.575,598

(563.1091

16.943.355

§l§Jt0¿40

Business-type

Activ¡ti6s Total

$ (8,085,576)

(1,328,676)
(6,082,14s)

12,175,110)
it345,474]|

11.121.726\

11 9,1 38.7071

43.770

$.n0

5,662,097
2,153,557

2,352,948

740,'t52
7,055,009

526,200
89.189

18.579.152

1515.785)

18,053.595

§lu3¿!10

Funct¡ondProqnms Exponssa

$ 8,3s7,276
1,328,676
6,242,019

2,175,110
6,777,753
't.121.726

s 26.002.560

Governm€ntsl Acllvitio!:
General govemmenl
Public safety
Public works

Culluro and recrealion

Health and welfare

lnteresl on long.tem debl

Tot l gowrnmsnld rct¡v¡tios

Bus¡ng3s-typ€ Act¡v¡tio8:
Public housing and weliare, including interests on

long-tom obligation ol $34,669

Tolrl bulimrs-lyps rctlvit¡.s

$ 610.578

$____6t0tz8

General revenues:

Property taxes
Municipal license tax
Sales and use lax
olher local laxes

$ 271,700

839,093

3 t.'t 10.793

s...............

*.

5.593,186

$ 5.593.186

$ 654.348

$___054318

Granl and contribulions not reslricled to spec¡lic programs

lnleresl and inveslmenl earn¡ngs

M¡scellaneous

Tolal general revenues

Change ¡n not posit¡on

Net position - beginning, as restaled

Net po3¡t¡on - end¡ng

The noles lo ihe l¡nanc¡al statemenls are an ¡nlegral part ol lhis statemenl.

s 159.8?4

$ 43.770

$.n0

1,729

1,825

? 55¿

47.324

1,110.240

$rJ§z§04
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COMIiIONWEALTH 0F PUERTO R|CO

i,UNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASNÁN
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30,2015

General Head Slart Deblserv¡ce Loans

Fund Fund Fund Fund

Capital Other Total

lmprovements Governmenlal Govefnmental

Fund Funds Funds

ASSETS

Cash and irvestrEnb

Cash wfi lscal agent

Receivables:

Mun¡o'ipal license hxes

Sales and use hxes

Property hxes

Bent licenses and per[ib

lñtsrgovernrEnhl

lnbrest ¡n€s and penalies

Federalgranb

Ohers

Due fomoher funds

fotal Asséts

-$$
3,194,709 3,506,287

28 409 
:

1,635,535 s 11,180,037

26,918 6,728p07

- 517,298

- 97,349

- 28,409

- 119,695

68,927 225,045

- 622,645

185,820 282,744

- s9,030

$4,648,845 $

93

517,294

97,349

119,695

156,118

622,645

59,030

652,995

95,657 $

96 924

239

4,800,000 $

Due b governnEnhlunib

Due b oher funds

Unearned tevenues:

Muñicipallhénse hxes

Toral Liáblities

$ 47,506 $

rg,gza

126,336

$ 402,488 $

209.302

653,234

$ 20,513,493

1,317,929

1,425,000

536,8s4

4:]6,359

653,234

1,389,466

5,758,U2

68,322

1,333,166

2,619,203

13,421,485

§ 20,513,493

$6,874,068 I 192,820 ¡ 3,223,118 $3,s06,287 $ 4,800,000 $ 1,9f7,200

LIABILIlIES, DEFERBEO INFLOWS OF

BESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILIIIES

Accoun§ payable añd accrued liabililes $

Bonds and nobs payable

Accrued ¡ntsresB

1,425,000

536,854

291,761

317,357

576,1-74

417 341

239

1,389,466

2,383,260 192,820 1,961.854 611.790 609,118

DEFERBED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavaihble revenue:

Mun¡cipal license bxes

Sales and use hxes

lnbrest fnes and penaltes

Federalgran§

- 509,033

136,699 136,699

- 619,112

s09,033

619,112

68,322

ToblDefurred lnfows of Resources

Fund bahnces:

Resnicbd

Conriüed

Ass¡gned

Unassigned

Totalfund bahnces

1,261,264 2,894,497 1,103,061 5,258,822

- 4,800.000

- 743,4ñ

1,128,145 205,021

743,460

2.619,203

4,800,000

3,362,663 - 1,261,264 2,A94,497 4,800,000 1,103,061

Total l¡ab¡l¡l¡es, oelerred lnflows of
Resourcés, and Fuñd B.lances i6,s74,068 § 192,820 § 3,223,118 §3,$6,287 § 4,800,000 ¡ 1,917,200

The notes to he financial statements are an ¡ntegral part of th¡s statement.
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COI,IIIONWEALTH OF PUEBTO RICO

I'UilICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASNÁN
STATEIIENÍ OF REVEI{UES, EXPEI{OITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMEI{TAL FUNDS

JUNE 30,2015

General Heed Start flebl Serv¡ca Loans

Fund Fund Fund Fund

Cap¡tal Otlrer Total

lmprovemanE Goyernmental Govsrnmental

Fund Funds Funds

R$nnues

Properly bres

Muniral l¡cense bx€s

Sabs and use hxos

Charges br servbes

Federal granb and conibufoos

Slat contbubrs

Liconses añd pemi§

lnbred, hes and penaies

Oher revenues

Tobl rcvefi¡es

ElQcnditure.

Current

G€neral govemÍEnl

Public sahly

Pubb rvorlc

Culbre

Reareabn

Heah and Yvelhrc

Capihloulay

0ebt servicei

Prhcipal

lnbrest and oher draEes

fohlexp€nd¡Jres

Ex6 (deftiency) of rEvenues over

(under) erpendturss

Oher lha¡c¡ng rourca. (uae3)

Long bm debt b§uance

Trans&rs h
Tran*rs oul

Tobl dler ilanchg sources {uses)

$ 5,662,097

2,030,794

2,216,249

834,896

5,55s,s99

7,252,@

751,956

366,697

351.457

25,022,213

§ 4,r62,690

2,0it0,794

1,499.4E6

8:31.696

7,055,009

751,956

352,217

$ r,499,«)7 §

7r6.763

3,300,863 2,254,736

197,459

12.10416 2,360

87,3&{ 264,093

16,n1,412 3,3m,879 2,218,530 2,728.§2

7,245,59E 11,039

1,017,715

4,700,999

211,W

656,4&

7m,tgl 3,300,879

- 1,825,171

- 7,256,637

. 1,017,715

440,371 5,141,373

- 241,5,16

- 656,4(X

2,554,895 6.s63,907

768,791 2,593,962

1,710,000

1,121,726

1,710,000

1,121,726

11,570,395 3,300,879 2,831,726 1,E36,210 3,764,060 6,§3,270

2,2U,017 (6r3,196) (1,836.210) (1,035,668) (1.28r.0s7)

2,315,000

5,719,017

(5,719,017)

2,315,000

1,033,9«)

12,§7,542

0 13,421,4a5

2,315,000

(2,956,875) (807,203) 478,790 4.800,000

6,319,538 - 2,068,{67 2,415,701

1,613

t5.162.505)

362,505

(556.512)

1,800,000 554,899

15.f60,892) (194,007) 2,315,m0 4,800,000 554.&)9

(480,769)

1,581],830

$3,362,6d9 3 $ 1,261,264 S 2,E94,497 $ 4,800,000 ¡

The notes to üe Iinancial statements are an integral part ol his statemeni.

1,1m,061
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAT,I SEBASNÁN

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAB ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

TOTAL FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUi.¡DS

Amounts reported for Govemmental Activities ¡n the Statement of Net Position are ditferenl because:

CapitalAssets used ¡n governmental activit¡es are noi financial resources and therefore, are

nol reported ¡n the funds. ln lhe current period, these amounls are:

Non Depreciable Cap¡tal Assets $ 8,079,353

85,€6,418
f25.703.481)

Depreciable Capilal Assets...

Tolal.

Some of the Municipality's rece¡vables will be collected after year end, but are not

available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditure and therefore,

are defered ¡n the funds:

Municipal license taxes........................... 509,033

Sales and use taxes 136,699

lnlerest, fines and penalt¡es.................. 619.1 12

Total

Amounts presented ¡n the Statement of Net Position, but not in Fund Balances due to

different basis of accounting:

Delened outflows of resources related to pens¡0n.................. 1,823,986

Delened inflows of resources related to pensi0n.................... (340.693)

Total.

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the cunent period and therefore, are not reporled

in the funds. Those liabilities consist ol:

General Bonds and Notes Payable........ (21,007,000)

Compensated Absences....................... (2,814,357)

Property Tax Debt - Law 42 ................... (861,291)

Property Tax Debt - Law 146................. (128,635)

Landfill Closure and Posl-Closures C0sts.............................

(36,765)

(179,817)
Claims and Judgments..........

Net Pension Liab¡l¡ty ................... (42.573.801)

Total Long-Term Liabilities

TOTAL NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

$ 13,421,48s

67,812,290

1,264,844

1,483,293

(67.601,666)

$l§J80¿f6

See accompany¡ng Notes to Bas¡c Financ¡al Statements.
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COIiIMONWEALTH OF PUERT0 FlCO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIÁN

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAB ENDED JUNE 30, 2OI5

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Amounts reported lor Governmenlal Act¡v¡ties in the Statement ol Act¡v¡lies are different because:

Govemmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of

Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported

as depreciation expense. ln the current period, these amounts are:

Capital Assets Additions.. 7,977,193

Ret¡rements and Construct¡on in Progress Reclassifications................... (5,089,558)

Depreciation Expense . 12,100,663)

Excess of CapitalAssets Additions over Depreciation Expense.......

Some of the Munic¡pali§'s revenues will be collected after year end, bul are not

available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditure and therefore,

are deferred ¡n the funds. The following amount represenled lhese revenues from

Some of the Mun¡cipality's revenues will be collected after year end, but are not

available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditure and therelore,

are delerred in lhe funds. The following amount represented these revenues from

current year...........

Debt proceeds provide cunent financial resources to governmental funds, but ¡ssuing debt

increases long- term l¡abilities in the Statement of Net Position. ln the cunent period,

these amounts are:

Repayment ol debl proceeG principal is expend¡ture in the govemmental funG, butthe repayment

reduces Long-Term Liabilities in the Statement of Net Pos¡t¡on. ln the current year the

fepayments were....

Repayment of long-term principal is expenditure in the govemmental funds, but the repayment

reduces Long-Term Liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. ln the current year, the

repayments and changes in debts were:

Property Tax Debt - Law 42................... 26,730

Property Tax Debt - Law 146................. 7,567

Estimated Landfill Closure and Post-closure Care Cost.......................... . 17,934

Compensated absences....................... (195,787)

Claims and Jud9ments.......................... 18,010

Employer Pension Costs ..................... (2.070.716)

Total Additional Expenditures..........

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

$ 1,033,943

786,972

(847,606)

1,264,844

(2,315,000)

1 ,710,000

(2.196.262)

§__GoiJ_G)

See accompanying Notes to Basic F¡nanc¡al Statemenis.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALMÍ OF SAN SEBASNÁN
STATEME¡¡T OF NET POSITION . PHOPRIETARY FUND

JUNE 30,2015

Business-type

Act¡v¡ties

ASSEfS:

Current Assets:

Cash

Accounb receilables

M iscellaneous prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Restricted Assets:

HesUicted cash

Capital Assets:

Land

Building and otrer depreciable assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Tohl capital assets

Oher assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:

Cunent Liabilities:

Mortgage payable

Accounts palable

Accrued l¡abil¡ües

Tenant security depos¡ts

Total curent l¡abilities

Non+unent liabiliües:

Mortgage palable

Total liabiliües

NEf ASSETS

ln\ésled ¡n Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

Restricted deposils

U n restric ted

Total net assets

Total Liabiliües and Net Assets

153,517

12,583

3,540

169,640

326,241

58,350

1,131,683

1 ,190,033

16,638

1,702,552

121,957

9,954

9,325

14,301

155,537

389,451

544,988

678,626

326,241

152,697

1,157,564

See accompanying Notes to Basic F¡nancial Statements.

1,702,552
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COIIIIONWEALI}I OF PUERTO RICO

TIUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASNÁN
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHAilGES IN FUND NET POSMO$ PROPRIETARY FTJND

JUNE 30,2015

Bus¡ness-type

Activiües

REI/ENUES

Renl

Oher

Total re\¡enues

EXPEilSES

Administatiue

Uüliües

Operaüng and mainlenance

Taxes and insurance

Depreciaüon

Total expenses

Operaüng income

NON OPERATING REIJENUES (EXPENSES)

lnterest recei\ed

lnterest on mortgage

Tolal non operaling retenues (expenses)

NetChangein etAsseb

Net Asseb, Beginning of Year, as restated

NET ASSEfS, END OF YEAR

654,348

1,825

656,173

173,413

21,722

173,491

41,442

165,841

575,909

80,264

1,729

(34,669)

(32,940)

47,324

1 ,1 10,240

1,157,564

See accompanying Noles to Basic F¡nancial Statements.
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COMIiIONWEALTH 0F PUEBTO RICO

MUNICIPALIW OF SAN SEBASTIÁN
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW. PROPRIETARY FUND

JUNE 30,2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash recei\ed from tenants and HUD

Other cash recei\,ed

Admin¡straü\e

M anagement fees

Salaries and wages

Uülities

Operating and maintenance

Miscellaneous taxes and ¡nsurance

Net cash proüded byoperating actiüties

CASH FLOW FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIV'ITIES

lnterest pa¡d in capital debt

Mortgage principal payrnent

Purchase of capital assets

Net cash used in capital and related financing actiüües

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Depos¡ts to resene for replacement and ¡nterest retained in account

\Mü¡drawal from resene for replacement account

Depos¡ts to resene for insurance escrow

Wihdrawal lrom resene for insurance escrow

lnterest on in\,estn ent

Nel cash proüded by in\est¡ng actiüties

Net ¡ncrease (decrease) in cash

Cash at beginning ol year

Cash at end of year

Business-type

Activities

655,127

1,825

656,952

(44,338)

(62,640)

(121,323)
(21,722)

(157,622\
(40,575)

(448,22o)

208,732

(35,501)

(124,317)

(3s,317)

(195,1 35)

(27,315)

32,770

(15,760)

31,657

1,729

23,081

36,678

1 16,839

1 53,517
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COITTONWEALIH OF PUERTO RICO

I,IUNICIPALIW OF SAN SEBASNÁN
STATEME}'IT OF CASH FLOW. PROPRIETARY FUND

JUNE 30, 2015

RECOT{CILlATlOt{ OF OPERATIt'lc lilCOlrE TO

CASH FLOWS FROI' OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income

Adjustrnent to reconcile change ¡n net asseb lo

netcash proüded byopefttüng acüúlies:

Depreciation

(lncrease) decrease in:

Receilables

M iscellaneous prepaid epenses

Tenant security depos¡ts

lnc rease (dec rease) in:

Accounb paFble- 30 days

Payoll

Tenant security deposits

Net cash proüded by operating acüüties

Business-type
Actrvrtes

80,264

165,840

779

319

(388)

(39,080)

1,121

(123)

128,468

208,732

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

25



COMi,IONWEALTH OF PUEFTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIÁN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMI'ARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Municipality of San Sebast¡án, Puerlo R¡co (Municipality) is a local governmental with full legislative, fiscal and

admin¡strative power to operate as a govemmental under Law No. 81 ol August 30, 1991, as amended, known as lhe
Autonomous Municipality Act of the Commonwealth oÍ Pueio Rico (Law No. 81).

The Municipality's govemmental system cons¡sts of executive and legislative branches. The Constituiion of the Commonwealth

of Puerto Rico (the 'Commonwealth") provides for the separation of powers of the execulive, legislalive and judicial branches.

A Mayor, elected every four years by the citizens, exercises the executive power of the Municipality. The legislative power is

exercised by the Municipal Legislature, wh¡ch ¡s also elected every four yeaB. The General Just¡ce Court System of the

Commonwealth, which has jurisdiction over the Municipality, exercises the judiciary power.

The Municipality assumes responsibil¡ty for providing serv¡ces to ¡ts c¡t¡zens related to public housing, welfare, public safety,

heahh, san¡tation, educat¡on, culture, recrealion, uóan developmenl, and many other general and adm¡nistrative duties.

The account¡ng policies of the Municipality conform to accounting principles generally accepled ¡n lhe United States of America

as applicable to governmental un¡ts. The lollowing is a summary ol the more sign¡ficant policies.

The accompanying basic financial statements of the Municipality have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America (GMP) as prescribed by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board

(GASB). The GASB ¡s lhe standard-setting body for govemmental accounting and linancial reporting. The GASB periodically

updates its codification of the existing Govemmental Accounling and Financial Reporting Standards which, along with

subsequent GASB pronouncements (Statements and lnterpretations) constitutes GMP for govemmental units.

ln June 1999, GASB ¡ssued Statement No.34, Basic Financial Statements - and Managemenfs Discussion and Analysis - for
State and Local Governments (GASB No. 34). This statement established new linancial reporting requirements for slate and
local govemments. On July 1, 2003, the Municipality adopted the provisions ol GASB No. 34 as well as other statements relerred

to below.

The accompanying basic financial statements present the f¡nancial posit¡on and the results of operations ol the Municipality and
its various funds and fund types. The basic linancial statements are presented as of June 30, 2015, and for the fiscal year then

ended. The more signilicant of lhese account¡ng policies are described below and, where appropriate, subsequent
pronouncements will be referenced.

According to the linancial reporting model establ¡shed by GASB No. 34, the m¡n¡mum requ¡red f¡nancial statement presentation

appl¡cable to the Municipality is composed of the following elemenls: (1) govemment-wide f¡nancial statements (GWFS), (2)

govemmental fund f¡nancial statements (GFFS), (3) notes to basic financial statements, and (4) required supplementary

information (RSl).

The required supplementary ¡nformat¡on, which cons¡sts of a management d¡scussion and analysis (MD&A), is infomation
presented along with, but separale lrom, the Municipality's bas¡c f¡nanc¡al statements. The MD&A ¡s a narrative report that
introduces the accompanying basic f¡nancial statemenls and prov¡des an analyt¡cal overview of the Mun¡cipality's financ¡al

act¡v¡ties for the year ended June 30, 2015, based on the Municipality's knowledge of the transactions, events and conditions
reflected in the basic financial statemenls. The MD&A also highlights certain key fiscal policies thal control the Municipality's
operations. Also, the other required supplementary information cons¡sts of the Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund

and the Schedule ol the Municipality's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, and the Schedule of Municipality

Contr¡butions, as required by GASB.



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALIW OF SAN SEBASNÁN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF S|GNTFTCANT ACCoUNTTNG p0LtCtES (CONTTNUED)

As prevrously menlioned, on July 1, 2003, other statements and ¡nterpretations were also adopted in conjunction and
simultaneously with GASB No. 34. Those statements and interpretations are: (1) GASB Statement No.33 - Actounting and
Financial Reporling for Nonexchange Transactions, (2) GASB Statement No. 37 - Basic Financial Statements - and
Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Govemments: Omnibus, (3) GASB Statement No. 38 - Certain
Financial Statement Note Disclosures and (a) GASB lnterpretat¡on No. 6 - Fecogniton and Measurcment of Cena¡n Liabilities
and Expenditures in Govemnental Fund Financial Statements, (4) GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Repoting of Defened
Outflows of Resources, Deferred lntlows of Resources, and Net Position, and (5) GASB Statement No. 65, /tems Previously
Reponed as Assets and Liabilities.

GASB No. 34 also required that the account¡ng for all governmental act¡v¡lies reported in the GWFS be based on applicable
pronouncements ¡ssued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and its predecessor bodies, such as the Accounting
Principles Board (APB), issued on or before November 30, 1989, provided those pronouncements do not confl¡cl w¡th or contradict
GASB pronouncements. Accord¡ngly, in conjunction and simultaneously with the adoption of GASB No. 34, the Municipal¡ty also
adopted the following pronouncements: (1) APB opinion No. 20 - Accounting Changes, (21APB Opinion No. 21 - lnterest on
Receivables and Payables, (3) FASB Statemenl No. S - Actount¡ng lor Contingenc¡es and (4) FASB Stalement No. 16 - Prior
Period Adjustments. The Municipali§ has elected to not apply all statements and interpretat¡ons ¡ssued by FASB after November
30, 1989.

A. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

The accompanying basic financial stalements include all departments and organizations units whose funds are under the custody
and control of the Municipality. ln evaluating the Municipality as a reporting entity, management has addressed all the potential
component un¡ts. The decision to include any polential component un¡l ¡n lhe report¡ng entity was made by applying the provisions
of GASBS A, Determining Whether Cenain Oryan¡zations are Component Units - an Amendment of GASB 1 4.

The bas¡c criter¡a for ¡ncluding a potent¡al component un¡t within the reporting entity is ¡f potential component units are linancially
accountable and other legally separate organizations for which the Municipality is not financially accountable but the nature and
significance of their relat¡onship w¡th the Mun¡cipality may be such that exclusion of the financial statements from lhose of the
Municipality would cause the accompany¡ng basic linancial statemenls lo be misleading or ¡ncomplete. Accordingly, a legally
separate organ¡zat¡on would be reported as a component unit of the Mun¡cipality if all ol the follow¡ng criteria are met:

. The Mayor appoints a voting majority of an organizat¡on's governing body and, either (1) the Mun¡c¡pal¡ty has the ability to
impose ¡ts will on that organizat¡on or (2) the organization has the potential to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose
specific financial burdens on the Mun¡cipal¡ty.. The economics resources, for which the Municipality is entitled, either received or held by the separate organ¡zation, are
entirely or almost entirely lor the d¡rect benelit of the Municipality or ¡ts const¡tuents.

The Municipality's management has concluded that based on the aforementioned cnteria, there are no legally separate ent¡t¡es
or organ¡zations that should be reporled as componenl un¡ts of the Munic¡pality for the f¡scal year ended June 30, 2015.
Accordingly, these basic financial statements presenl only the Municipal¡ty as the report¡ng ent¡ty.

These financial slalements present the respective financial position of the governmental activ¡ties, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund informat¡on ol the Municipality, as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes ¡n f¡nanc¡al posit¡on,
where applicable, thereof for the f¡scal year then ended.



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASNÁN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY 0F StGNtF|CANT ACCoUNTTNG POLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

B. MEASUREI'ENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

GOVERNMENT.WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide linancial statements (the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Act¡v¡ties) are reported using the

economic resources measurement focus and the accrual bas¡s of account¡ng. Revenue is recorded when eamed and expenses

are recorded when a liability is incuned, regardless ol the t¡ming ol related cash flows. Grant and similar items are recognized as

revenue as soon as all eligib¡lity requ¡rements have been met.

GOVEBNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEITENTS

The govemmental fund financ¡al statemenls are reported us¡ng lhe current financial resources measurement locus and the

modified accrual basis of accounting. Hevenues are recorded when suscept¡ble to accrual; as soon as it ¡s both measurable and

available. 'Available' means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter, normally w¡th¡n s¡xty (60) days, to be

used to pay liabilities of the current per¡od. Expenditures are generally recognized when the related liability is incuned.

The except¡on to this general rule is the principal and interest on general obligation long{em debt and compensated absences,

if any, are recognized when due.

ln applying the "susceptible to accrual'concept to ¡ntergovernmental revenues (federal grants) pursuant to GASBS No. 33,

Accounting and Fnancial Repofting for Nonexchange lransactlons (the Municipal¡ty may act as either provider or recipient), the

provider should recognize liabil¡ties and expenses and the recipient should recognize receivables and revenue when the

applicable eligibility requirements includ¡ng time requirements, are met. Resources lransmined before the el¡g¡b¡l¡ty requirements

are met should, under most circumstances, be reported as advances by the provider and defened revenue by the recipienl.

There are essentially two §pes ol revenue. For some grants, funds must be expended by the Municipality on the specific purpose

or project before any amounts w¡ll be re¡mbursed. Revenue is, therelore, recognized as expend¡tures are incurred to the extent

available. For the other revenue, moneys are virtually unrestricted and are generally revocable only lor failure lo comply with

prescribed compliance requiremenls. These resources are reflected as revenue at lhe lime of receipt or earlier il the susceptible

to accrual cnteria is met.

Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incuned, as under accrual accounting. Modilications to the accrual basis

of account¡ng ¡nclude the follow¡ng:

* Employee's vested annual vacation and sick leave is recorded as expend¡ture when utilized. The amount ol accumulated

annual vacat¡on and s¡ck leave unpaid al June 30, 20'15, has been reported only in the govemment-wide f¡nanc¡al statements.

+ Principal and ¡nterest on bonds and notes payable are recorded when they mature (when payment is due), except for principal

and ¡nterest due in July 1 of the following fiscal year, which are recorded when resources are available ¡n the debt service

fund (generally June 30).

* Obl¡gation under capital leases, amount subject to claims and judgements under litigation and other long{erm obligalions are

recorded only when they mature (when payment is due).

{. Accounls payable and accrued l¡ab¡lil¡es not expected to be liquidated with available and expendable linancial resources are

recorded in the accompany¡ng statement ol net pos¡tion but nol in the govemmental funds.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASNÁN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1 - SUIIIIARY 0F StGNtF|CANT ACCoUNTTNG POLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

C. FINANCIAL STAÍEiTENT PRESEI.¡TATION

The basic financial statements include both govemment-w¡de (based on the Municipality as a whole) and fund financial

statements. While the previous financial reporting model emphasized fund §pes (the tolal ol all funds ol a part¡cular type), in the
new financial model the focus is on e¡ther the Municipalily as a whole, or major individual funds (within the basic financial
statements). Both the govemment-wide and fund linancial statements (within the basic financial statements) categorize primary

activil¡es as either govemmental or business type.

GOVERNITENT.WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The govemment-wide financial statements (the Statement of Net Pos¡t¡on and the Statement of Act¡v¡ties) report information of all

the activit¡es of the Mun¡cipality. For most parl, the eflect of ¡ntelund activity has been removed lrom these govemment-wide

financial statements. Govemmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and ¡ntergovemmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a s¡gn¡f¡cant extent on fees and charges for support.

The focus of the Statement of Net Position is designed to be s¡m¡lar to bottom l¡ne results for the Munic¡pality and ¡ts govemmental

activities. This statement, for the lirst time, combines and consolidates governmental fund's current financial resources (shorl-

term expendable resources) with cap¡tal assets and long{erm obligations.

The Statement of Net Position presents the report¡ng entities' assets and liabilities, with the difference reported as net pos¡tion.

Net pos¡tion ¡s reported ¡n three categories:

* lnvested ¡n Caoital Assets. Net of Related Debt - These consists of capital assets, nel of accumulated depreciation and

amortization, and reduced by outstanding balances lor bonds, notes, and other debt that are attributed to the acquisition,

construction, or improvement of those assets.

* Festricted - These results when constraints are placed the use of resources, which can be either extemally ¡mposed by

creditors, grantors, contributors, and the like, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

* Unrestricted - These consists of resources which do not meet the def¡n¡tion of the two preced¡ng categories. Unrestricted

resources often are designated, to indicate that management does not consider them to be available for general operalions.

Unrestr¡cted resources otlen have constraints that are imposed by management, bul can be removed or modified.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, generally ¡t ¡s the Municipalitys policy to use restricled

resources f¡rst, then the unrestricted resources as lhey are needed.

The Statement ol Activ¡t¡es ¡s locused on both the gross and net costs per funclional category. The statement reduces gross

expenses (including deprec¡at¡on) by related program revenues, operat¡ng and capiial grants. This is intended to summarize and

simplify lhe useis analysis of cost of various governmental services.

GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEI'ENTS

The lund financial statements (the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Hevenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances)
are, in substance, very s¡milar to the f¡nancial statements presented in the previous financial reporling model. Emphasis here is
on the major funds in the governmental category. Non-major funds are summarized into a single column. 
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COI¡MONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

l¿tUNlclPAL|W OF SAN SEBASIÁN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1 - SUMI¿IABY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION (CONTINUED)

Traditional users of governmental financial statements will find the Fund Financial Statements presentation more familiar. The

focus is on Major Funds, rather than the previous financial model's fund types. The Governmental Major Fund Stalements are
presented on current financial resources and mod¡f¡ed accrual basis of accounting.

This is the manner in which these funds are normally budgeted. This presentation deemed most appropr¡ate to (a) demonstrate
legal and covenant compliance, (b) demonstrate the source and use of liquid resources, and (c) demonstrate how the
Municipali§'s actual experience conforms to the budgeted fiscal plan.

Since the governmental fund statements are presented in a differenl measurement focus and basis of accounting than the
government-w¡de statements, reconciliation is presented and a separate explanation for each differences.

The Municipality reports its f¡nanclal position (Balance Sheet) and results of operations (Statement of Bevenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance) in funds, which are considered separate account¡ng ent¡t¡es. The operat¡ons of each fund are

accounted for within a set of seltbalancing accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose and

is used to aid management ¡n demonstrat¡ng compliance with legal, linancial, and contractual prov¡s¡ons.

The new model as def¡ned in GASBS No. 34 established criteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues, or
expenditures/expenses of either fund category ¡n the govemmental fund) for the determinatíon of malor funds. The non-major

funds are combined in a single column ¡n the fund f¡nanc¡al statements. The Mun¡c¡pal¡ty reporls the follow¡ng major funds:

General Fund - This is the general operating fund of the Municipality. lt is used to account for all financial resources,

except those required lo be accounted for in another fund.

Head Start Fund - Th¡s ¡s the fund used to account for all transaclions of the Head Start Program. The objectives of this
program are to provide comprehensive health, educat¡onal, nutritional, social and other developmental services primarily

to econom¡cally disadvantaged pre-school children and infants and toddlers so that the children will attain school

readiness.

Debt Service Fund - This is the fund used to account for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of, general

long"term debt princ¡pal, ¡nterest, and related costs.

Loans Fund - This is the fund used to account for all financial resources and transactions related to the loans lor
construction purposes and cap¡tal outlays of the Municipality, which is financed by loans from the Government
Development Bank of Puerto R¡co.

Capital lmp¡ovements Fund - Th¡s is the fund used to account for all f¡nanc¡al resources and lransact¡ons related to
the special fund created by Ord¡nance Number 46-2014-2015, for construct¡on and ¡mprovements.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUEBTO BICO

I'UNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIÁN

NoTES T0 THE BASTC FtNANC|AL STATEMENTS (C0NT|NUED)

NOTE f - SUMMARY 0F STGNtFtCANT ACCoUNTTNG pOLtCtES (C0NT|NUED)

D. FINANCIALREPORTINGPRESENTATION

The accounts of the Municipality are organized on the basis of funds, each if which is considered a separate accounting entity.
The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that compr¡se ¡ts assets, liabilities,
lund equ¡ty, revenues, and expenditures. Fund types are as follows:

General Fund- ls the general operating fund of the Municipality. ll ¡s used to account for all governmental activ¡ty, except
those required to be accounled for in another lund.

Special Revenue Fun4-This is the fund used to account for revenues derived from local funds, slate grants or other
reslricted revenue sources. The uses and limitations of each special revenue fund are specified by Municipality
ordinances or state statules.

Debt Service Fund - This ¡s the lund used to account for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of, general
long{erm debt principal, interest, and relaled costs.

Capital Proiects Fund - This is the fund used to account for financial resources used for the acquisition or construclion
ol major capital facililies. The uses and limilat¡ons of each capital projects fund are specified by Municipality ordinances
or state stalutes.

E. FUl'lD BALANCES

The Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statemenl No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Govemmental Fund Type
Definitions (GASB 54), which enhanced the uselulness ol lund balance inlormation by providing clearer lund balance
classificalions that can be more consistently applied. This statement establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a
hierarchy based primadly on the extent to which the Authority is bound lo observe constraints ¡mposed upon the use of resources
reported in govemmental funds.

Pursuanlto the provisions of GASB 54, the fund balances amounts are reported as nonspendable, restricted, comm¡ned, ass¡gned
and unassigned, based on the relative stren$h of the constra¡nts that control how spec¡fic amounts can be spent, as described
as follows:

l{onspendable - Represent resources that cannot be spent readily with cash or are legally or contractually required not to
be spent, includ¡ng but not limited to invenlories, prepaid items, long-term balances ol loans and notes receivable.

Restricted - Represent resources thal can be spent only for the specific purposes slipulated by const¡tutional provisions,
extemal resource providers (externally imposed by credilors or grantors), or lhrough enabling leg¡slation (lhat ¡s, leg¡slation
that creales a new revenue source and restr¡cts its use). Effectively, reslrictions may be changed or lifted only with the consent
of resource providers.

Committed - Hepresent resources used for specific purposes, imposed by fomal act¡on ol the entity's highesl level of
decision mak¡ng authority (Mun¡cipal Leg¡slature through resolut¡ons and ordinances) and can only be changed by similar
law, ordinance or resolution, no laler than the end of the f¡scal year.
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E. FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

.3. Assiqned - Represent resources ¡ntended to be used by the Municipality lor specific purposes but do not meet the criteria
to be classified as restricted or committed (generally execulive orders approved by the Mayo|. lntent can be expressed by
the Mun¡c¡pal Legislature, the Mayor or by an official or body to which the Municipal Legislature delegates authority ¡n
conform¡ty with Aulonomous Municipalit¡es Act of Puerto Bico, as amended. ln govemmental funds other than the general
fund, assigned fund balance represents the remaining amount that ¡s not restricted or committed.

'l' Unassioned - Replesent the residual classification for the Municipal¡ty's general lund and includes all spendable amounts
not contained ¡n the other classifications. ln other funds, the unassigned classification is used only to report a deficit balance
resulting from overspending for specific purposes for which amounts had been restricted, committed, or assigned.

At June 30, 2015, the accompanying fund f¡nancial statements reported fund balances as restricted, comm¡ned, assigned and
unassigned.

F, BUDGETARY DATA

The Municipality annually adopts the Budget Resolution for all operating funds of the Municipal¡ty except for certa¡n restricted
accounls of Proprietary Funds and Special Revenue Funds. Budgetary control is legally maintained at the fund level. The budget
is prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting w¡th encumbrance included as budgetary basis expenditures. Tie
Municipal¡ty's Budget Resolution prov¡des transfer authority (1)to ihe Mayor and the Managemónt and Budget Director, within
and between departments and funds, as long as the lotal budget of lhe Municipali§ (net of interfund transfers) is not increased;
(2)tolhe Management and Budget Directorto ¡mplement grant budgets as the grant applications are accepted by the Mun¡cipality;
and (3) to the Management and Budget Director to amend (re-appropriate) each new yea/s budget, to the extánt of outstanding
encumbrances, and/or unexpended projecugrant appropriations at year end. Municipali§'s Legislature action ¡s requ¡red for (lJ
use of the budgeted Legislature contingency, and (2) the approval of supplemental appropriations. During the year, seveiai
supplemental appropriations were necessary.

The budget columns (original and final budgets) ol the Budgetary Comparison - General Fund reflect the original budget and the
amended budget (which have been adlusted for legally author¡zed revisions of lhe annual budget§ during the year).
Appropriations, except remaining pro,ecl appropriat¡ons, encumbrances, and unexpended grant appropriátions, lapie at thá end
of each fiscal year.

Amendments to the budget, including transfers, require the approval of the Municipal Leg¡slature. Unencumbered appropriations
lapse at the end of the nexl fiscal year. The Municipality follows lhese procedures, in accordance wilh law, in order to establish
the budgetary data reflected in the bas¡c f¡nancial stalements:

1. Prior of May 31 of each fiscal year, the Mayor submits to the Mun¡c¡pal Legislature a proposed budget for the fiscal year
commenc¡ng the following July 1 ¡n addition of a budget message;
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2. The budget document ¡s ava¡lable lor public inspection prior to its approval by the Munic¡pal Legislature;

3. The Commissioner of Mun¡c¡pal Affairs examines the budget to verify if it complied with the law's standards and sends it to
the Mayor lor any comments or recommendation before the l¡mited date establ¡shes by the Law;

4. Prior to June 30, the annual budget ¡s legally enacled through passage of the annual appropriation ord¡nance;

5. lf a budget is not adopted prior to the end of the end of the fiscal year, the annual budget for lhe preceding fiscal year, as
approved by the Munic¡pal Leg¡slature and the Mayor, is automatically renewed for the ensuing fiscal year until a new budget
is approved. Th¡s permits the Municipality to conlinue making payments for its operating and other expenses until lhe nów
budget is approved;

6. Subsequent to the enactment of the annual appropriation ordinance, the Municipal Legislature has the authority to make
necessary amendments made during the fiscal year and are reflecled in the budget information included in the Budgetary
Comparison Schedule - General Fund;

7. Budgetary data for the Special Revenue Fund has nol been presented ¡n the accompanying basic financial statements as
such funds are budgeled over the life ol the respective grant or proiect and not on an annual basis.

S¡nce the budgetary basis differs from account¡ng principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GMp), actual
amounts lor the General Fund in the accompanying Budgetary Comparison Schedule, is presented on the budgetary bas¡s to
enhance comparability.

The pr¡ncipal differences between the budgetary and GMP bases are the following:

1. Encumbrances are recorded as expenditures under the budgetary basis and as a reserve of lund balances under GMp.

2' The non€xonerated port¡on of the property tax advances are presenled as revenue in lhe budgetary basis and as other
financing sources under GMP.

3. lnterlund transactions of the General and Special Revenue Funds are not ¡ncluded in the budgetary basis.

4. Certa¡n accrued liabilities and other debts are not included ¡n the budgetary bas¡s.

5. Certain revenues susceptible to accrual, i.e., both measurable and available, are not included in the budgetary data.

All encumbrance appropr¡ations in the operating budgel lapse at the end of the fiscal year. Property laxes collected during lhe
cunent year by the Mun¡cipal Revenue Collection Center (Fiscal Agent) are presented as revenues in the accounting basii but
are not considered in the budgetary schedule.

33



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
]iIUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASNÁN

NoTES T0 THE BASTC FtNANC|AL STATEMENTS (CONTTNUED)

NoTE 1 - SUMMARY 0F StGNtF|CANT ACCoUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CoNT|NUED)
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The special funds of the Special Revenue Fund have not been included in the budgetary comparison because balances are not
budgeted. Also, the budget prepared lor the Federal Finance Awards Programs included ¡n the Major and Non Major Funds is
based on a program period which is not necessarily a year. Accordingly, it's not practical to present an annual comparison of
budget lor such programs.

G. CASH, CASH EQUlvALEl'lT AND INVESTMENT

The Finance Director of the Municipali§ is responsible for investing the available resources ¡n certificates of deposit and olher
short{erm ¡nvestments. lnvestments are made from the available combined funds of the Municipality and, accordingly, it ¡s not
pract¡cal to disclose cert¡ficates ol deposit and other short-tem investments ind¡v¡dually by fund in the comb¡ned f¡nancial
slatemenls. lnlelest earned on certificates of deposit and other short-term investments are recognized as revenue in the General
Fund. Cash in the Spec¡al Revenue, Debt Service and Capital Project Funds are restricled; accordingly, resources available were
nol used for pool investments.

Under the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth, publ¡c funds deposited by the Municipalis in commercial banks must be
fully collateralized for the amounts deposiled in excess of the federal depository insurance generally provided by the Federal
Deposit lnsurance Corporation (FDIC). All secur¡t¡es pledged as collateral are held by agents designated by the Commonwealth's
Secretary of the Treasury, but not in the Municipality's name.

Cash with fiscal agent represents property tax collections retained by the Municipal Revenue Collect¡on Cenler and undisbursed
proceeds of certain bonds, loans or grants which are maintained in a cash custodian account by the Govemment Development
Bank of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico.

Cash balance recogn¡zed ¡n lhe Debt Service Fund is restricted for lhe payment ol the Municipality's obligations, and others are
restr¡cted for specific projects, such as the acqu¡sition or construction of permanenl improvements. The sinking fund is maintained
by the Govemmental Developmenl Bank ol Puerlo Rico, agency which acts as lhe insurer and payer of the Municipality's bonds
and notes ¡ssued in accordance wlth law.

H. RECEIVABLES

Rece¡vable are stated net of estimated allowances for uncollectible accounts, which are determined upon past collecl¡on
experience and current econom¡c conditions. Receivable from Federal Govemment represenls amounts owed to lhe Mun¡c¡pality
fo¡ reimbursement of expenditures incurred pursuant to lederally funded programs.

I, INVENTORIES

The General, Spec¡al Revenue and Capital P@ect Funds, purchases otfice and printing suppl¡es, gasoline, o¡l and other
expendable suppl¡es held for consumpt¡on. The cost ol purchases is recorded as expenditure in the appropriate fund and the
¡nventory is not recorded in the basic linancial statements.

34



COMI'ONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASNÁN

NOTES T0 THE BASTC FTNANC|AL STATEMENTS (CoNT|NUED)
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J. CAPITALASSETS

Property, planl and equ¡pment purchased or acquired is carried at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Conlributed assets
are recorded at fa¡r market value as of the date received. other costs incuned for repairs and maintenance is expensed as
¡ncured.

Depreciation on all assets is provided on the straighfl¡ne basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Capihl Assels Years

Bu¡ld¡ngs and bu¡lding improvements
lnfrastructure
Vehicles and equipment
Furniture and fixtures

20-50
25-50
5-20

5-10

K. LONG-TERMOBLIGATIONS

The liabilities repoiled ¡n the govemment-wide financial statements ¡ncluded general and special obl¡gation bonds and notes, and
other long-term liabililies, such as vacalion, sick leave, l¡tigation, long-term l¡abilities to other govemmental entities.

ln the fund f¡nancial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond issuances cost, during the cunent period. The face
amount of debt issued ¡s reported as other financing sources, while bond issuance costs, whether or not wilhheld from the actual
debt proceeds received, are reported as expenditures.

L. COMPENSATEDABSENCES

The Municipality accrues accumulaied unpa¡d vacation and sick leave and associaled employee-related costs when eamed (or
est¡mated to be eamed) by the employee. The Municipali§'s employees are granted 30 days ol vacat¡ons and 18 days of sick
leave annually. Vacat¡ons may be accumulated up to a max¡mum of sixty (60) days and sick leave up to a maximum of ninety (90)
days. ln the event of employee resignation, the employee ¡s paid for accumulated vacation days up to the maximum allowed.
Separation from employment priorto use of allorpart olthe s¡ck leave term¡nates all rights for compensat¡on, except lor employees
with ten years ol service who a¡e entitled to sick leave pay up lo the maximum allowed. The Municipality accrued a liability for
compensated absences, wh¡ch meet the following criteria:

1. The Municipality's obligat¡on relat¡ng to employee's rights to receive compensat¡on for fulure absences is attr¡butable to
employee's serv¡ces already rendered.

2. The obligation relates lo rights that vest or accumulate.

3. Payment ol the compensat¡on ¡s probable.

4. The amount can be reasonably est¡mated.
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L. COMPENSATEDABSENCES(CONTTNUED)

ln accordance with the above criteria and requirements as established by GASBS No. 16; the Municipality has accrued a liability
for compensated absences, which has been earned but not taken by Municipality's employees. For the govemment.w¡de
statements, the current porl¡on is the amount estimated to be used in the following year. For the govemmental lunds statements,
all of the compensated absences are considered long{erm and therefore, are not a fund liabilis and represents a reconcil¡ng ¡tem
between the fund level and govemment-wide presentations.

The following is a summary of changes in the balance of Compensated Absences lor the fiscal year ended June 30, 20'14.

BALAI{CE
RETIREI¡lENTS

AI{D CURBEI{T
JUNE 30.2014 NEW ISSUES MATURATES

s_2.018t20 $__l95J8Z $_ :

BALATICE

JUNE 30.2015

§_2§t_4i)52

CURREI{T LOTIG.TERTI
PORÍION PORTION

s__202-0a0 s_2.607t57

M. INSUBANCE

The Municipality has insurance coverage for its publ¡c facilities, primar¡ly lo prov¡de protection from catasfophic losses. Also,
principal officials of the Municipality are covered under various surety bonds. The Secretary of the Treasury Department of the
Commonwealth ol Puerto Rico ¡s the agent commissioned to place all of the Municipality's insurance coverage. Corresponding
premiums payable are withheld by the Municipal Revenue Collection Center from quarterly advances of annual property tax and
subsidy send to the Municipality.

N. INTERFUNDTRANSACTIONS

lnterfund transaclions are reflected as loans, reimbursements or translers. Loans are reported as receivables and payables as
appropriate and are subject to eliminat¡on upon consolidation. Re¡mbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges the
appropriate benef¡ting fund and reduces ¡ts related cost as a re¡mbursement. All other intelund transact¡ons are trealed as
transfers. Transfers belween govemmental or proprietary funds are netled as part of the reconciliat¡on to the govemment.wide
columnar presenlalion. Ihe Municipality has the follow¡ng types of reciprocal and nonreciprocal interfund activities:

* lnterlund loans - Bepresent amounts provided with a requirement for repayment, wh¡ch are recorded as "due from'in lhe
lender govemmental fund and "due to'in the bonower govemmental fund. lnlerlund receivables, wh¡ch are not cons¡dered
cunently available financial resources, are reporled as advances. For amounts nol expected to be collected within a
reasonable period, interfund receivables/payables are reduced to lhe est¡mated real¡zable value and lhe amount that is not
expected to be repaid ¡s reported as a transfer from the governmental fund that made the loan.

{' lnlerlund trAnsfers - Represent flows of assets (pemanent reallocation of financial resources among governmental funds)
w¡thout equivalent flows of assets in relum and without a requirement for repayment. Transfers are reported as olher
financing uses in the governmental fund making kansfers and as other financing sources ¡n lhe govemmental fund receiving
translers.

* lnterfund reimburcements - Bepresent repayments from the govemmental fund responsible for part¡cular expenditures or
expenses lo the governmental fund that initially paid for them.
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O, CLAIMSANDJUDGMENTS

The eslimated amount of the liabil¡ty for claims and judgments, il any, which is due on demand, such as kom adjudicaled or settled
claims, is recorded in the General Fund. The Long-Term Liabilities ¡ncludes an amount estimated by the exlernal counselors of
the Municipality as a contingent liab¡l¡ty or liabilities with a fixed or expected due date, which will require future available financial
resources for its paymenl.

P. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with account¡ng principles generally accepted ¡n the United States
of America requires management to make est¡mates and assumptions lhat atfect the reporled amounts ol assets and liabilities
and disclosures of conl¡ngent assels and liabilities at the date of lhe basic linancial statements and lhe reported revenue and
expenses during lhe report¡ng period. Actual resull could difer lrom those esl¡mates.

O. ACCOUNTING FOR PENSION COSTS

The Municipality adopted the provisions of GASBS No. 68, Accounfrhg and Repoñing for Pensions - an amendnent of GASB
Statement No. 27, and GASBS No. 7l , Pens,on Transition tor Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date, which
amended GASBS N0.68.

The Municipal¡ty accounts for pension costs from the standpo¡nt of a participant in a multi-employer cost.sharing plan. Accordingly,
the net pension liab¡l¡ty, pens¡on expense and deferred outf lows/inflows ol resources recognized in the accompanying basic
l¡nancial statements are equal to the Municipal¡ty's propolionale shares of the collective net pension liability, pension eipense
and collective defened outflows4nflows of resources reported for the pension plans'trust by the plan's administrator as of the
measurement dale. ln addil¡on, if the Municipality's annual contnbutions are less than the statutorily required amounts, a liability
is recorded for any unpaid balances. For the purpose of applying the requirements ol GASBS Nos. 68 and 71, the Commonweatñ
of Puerto Rico is considered to be the sponsor of the Employees' Retirement System of lhe Government of Puerto Bico and its
lnstrumentalities (ERS), a multi-employer hybrid defined contribution plan in which the employees of the Municipal¡ty participate.
The Mun¡cipality is considered a parlic¡pant, and not a sponsor, of ihis ret¡rement system since the majority of the parlicipants in
the aforementioned pension trust fund are employees of the Commonwealth of Puerto Hico and the basic financ¡al statements of
such retirement system are pan ol the Commonwealth's f¡nancial report¡ng entity.

For purposes of measuring lhe net pension liability, delened outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions and pension
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the ESR plan and additions to/reduct¡ons from the ESR plan's fiduciary
net pos¡tion have been determined on the same bas¡s as they are reported by the ESR. For this purpose, benefit paymenti
(including refunds of employee contribut¡ons) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benef¡t terms.
lnvestments are reported at fair value.

B. RISK FINANCING

The Municipality carries commercial insurance to cover casualty, theft, tort claims and other losses. lnsurance polic¡es are
negot¡ated by the Puerto Rico Treasury Department and costs are allocated among all the Mun¡c¡palities of Puerlo Rico.

Cost of ¡nsurance allocated to the Municipality during the liscal year 2014-2015 amounted to $370,265. The current insurance
policies have not been cancelled or terminated. The Municipal Revenue Collection Center ("CHlM') deducted $139,627 from the
gross property tax collect¡ons, lor workers compensation insurance covering all municipal employees.
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S. FUTURE ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GASB has issued the following accounting standards that have effective dates after June 30, 2015:

. GASB Statement No. 79 Cela,n Erternal lnvestment Pools and Pool Pafticipants. The requ¡rements of th¡s Statement are
efleclive for reporting periods beginning afler June 15, 2015, except for the provisions in paragraphs 18, 19, 23-26, and 40,
which are effeclive for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015. Earl¡er appl¡cation is encouraged.

. GASB Statement No. 78 Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans. fhe
requirements of th¡s Statement are effect¡ve lor reporting periods beginning after December 15, 20'15. Earl¡er application is
encouraged.

. GASB Statemenl No.77 Tax Abatement Disclosures. The requirements ol this Statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2015. Ealier application is encouraged.

. GASB Slatemenl No.76 The Hierarchy of Generally Ac:cepted Accounting Pinciples for State and Local Govemments. The
prov¡s¡ons ¡n Statement 76 are ellective for reporting periods beginning alter June 15, 2015. Earlier application is encouraged.

. Statement N0.75 Account¡ng and Financial Bepofting for Postenployment Benefits )ther Than Pensions.fhe provisions in
Slatement 75 are effeclive for liscal years beginning after June 15, 2017. Ealier appl¡cation is encouraged.

. Statement No.74 F¡nancial Repoft¡ng for Postemployment Benef¡t Plans Othet Than Pension Plans. The provisions in
Statement 74 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2016. Earl¡er appl¡cation is encouraged.

. Statement No.73 Accounling and Financial Repofling tor Pensions and Related Assets That Arc Not within the Scope of
GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Cenain Provisions of GASB Statenen§ 67 and 68.Ihe provisions ¡n Statement 73
are effective for liscalyears beginning after June 15, 2015 - except lhose provisions that address employers and governmental
non-employer contributing entities for pensions that are not within the scope ol Statemenl 68, which are effective for fiscal
years beginning afterJune 15,2016. Earlier appl¡cation is encouraged.

. GASB Statemenl No.72 Fair Value Measurement and Applicat¡on. The requirements of this Statement are etfecl¡ve for
financ¡al statements for report¡ng periods beginning after June 15, 2015. Earlier applicat¡on is encouraged.

The Municipali§'s management has concluded that the future adoption of these GASB Statements will not have a sign¡licant
¡mpact on the Authority's basic financial slatemenls.

T. ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The provisions of the following Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement have been implemented for the
year ended June 30, 2015:

. GASB Statement No. 68 /4ccounf,ng and Financial Reporling for Pensions-an amendnent of GASB Statement No. 27 (txued
06/12).lhe pnnary object¡ve of this Statemenl is to ¡mprove accounting and financial reporting by state and localgovemments
for pensions. lt also ¡mproves ¡nformation provided by slate and local govemmental employers about linanc¡al support for
pens¡ons that ¡s provided by other entities. This Statement resulls from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing
standards of accounting and financial report¡ng for pensions with regard to providing decision-useful ¡nformation, supporl¡ng
assessments ol accountab¡lity and ¡nter-period equity, and creating add¡t¡ona¡ transparency.
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. GASB Statement No. 69 Govemment Combinatbns and üsposals ot Government Operations (lssued 0llr3) This Statement

establ¡shes accounting and financial reporting standards related to government combinations and disposals of government

operations. As used in this Statement, the term govemment combinations include a variety of transactions referred to as

mergers, acquisitions, and transfers of operations.

. GASB Statement No. 71 Pens¡on Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date-an amendment

of GASB Statement No. 68 (lssued 1'l/13). The object¡ve of th¡s Statement ¡s to address an ¡ssue regard¡ng application of the

transition prov¡s¡ons of Statement No. 68, Account¡ng and Financial Beporting for Pensions.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS

The Municipality maintains its deposits in various commercial banks located in Puerlo Rico and Govemment Development Bank

for Puerto Rico (GDB). Proceeds Írom bonds and funds related to certain grant awards are required by law to be held with GDB.

The Municipality adopted the prov¡s¡ons of GASB Statement No. 40 (GASB No. 40\, Deposit and lnvestment Risk Disclosure, an
Amendment to GASB Statemenf No. 3. This statement requires that state and local govemments disclose essential risk
information about deposits and investments. The disclosure requ¡rements cover four main areas: (1) credit risk, (2) ¡nterest rate

risk, (3) custod¡al cred¡t risk, (4) fore¡gn exchange exposure.

Credit risk - This is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill ils obligations. ln compliance

with the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth, the Municipality has adopted, as it's custodial and credit risk policy, the
Statement of lnvestment Guidelinx for the Government of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. Accordingly, the Municipality
¡nvests only ¡n obligations of the Commonwealth, obligations of the United States of America, certilicates of deposits,

commerc¡al paper, bankers' acceptances, or in pools of obligations of the mun¡c¡pal¡t¡es of Puerlo Rico, which are managed

by GDB. According to the aforementioned investment guidelines, the Municipality does not invest in marketable securities or
any types of ¡nvestments for which cred¡t r¡sk exposure may be s¡gn¡f¡cant. Therefore, the Mun¡c¡pal¡ty's management has

concluded that the risk related to any possible loss related to delaults by commercial banks on the Municipality's deposits is

considered low at June 30, 2015.

lnterest rate r¡sk - This is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will adversely affect the fair value of an

¡nvestment. The Municipali§ manages its exposure lo decl¡nes ¡n fair values by: (1) not including debt ¡nvestments ¡n ¡ts

¡nvestment portfol¡o at June 30, 2015, (2) lim¡ting the weighted average maturity of its investments to three months or less,

and (3) keeping most of its bank deposits in interests bearing accounts generating ¡nterests at prevailing market rates. At
June 30, 2015, the Municipality's investments ¡n certilicates of deposits are recorded at cost, which approx¡mates their fair
value. Therefore, the Municipali§'s management has concluded lhat at June 30, 2015, the ¡nlerest rate risk associated with

the Municipality's cash and cash equivalents is considered low.

Custodial credit risk - ln the case of deposits, ih¡s ¡s the risk that ¡n the event of a bank failure, the Municipality's deposits
may not be recovered. Pursuant to lhe Statenent of lnvestnent Guidelines Íor the Govemment of the Commonwealtlt of
Puerlo R¡co lhe balances depos¡ted ¡n commerc¡al banks by the Municipality are insured by the Federal Deposit lnsurance
Corporation (FDIC) generally up to a max¡mum of $250,000 per depos¡tor. ln addition, public funds deposited in commercial
banks by the Municipal¡ty are fully securit¡es pledged as collateral are held, in the Municipality's name, by the agents of the
Commonwealth's Secretary of Treasury. Deposits with GDB are uninsured and uncollateral¡zed. However, no losses related

to defaults by GDB on deposit transactions have been incurred by the Municipality through June 30, 2015. Therelore, the
Municipality's management has concluded that at June 30,2015 the custodial credit risk associated with the Municipality's
cash and cash equivalents is considered low.
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIÁN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NoTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EoUIVALENTS (CONTII.¡UED)

Fofe¡on exchanqe risk- The r¡skthat changes in exchange rates willadversely affect the value of an investment or a deposit.

According to the alorementioned investment guidelines, the Municipality is prevented from investing in foreign securilies or

any other types of ¡nvestments in which foreign exchange risk exposure may be s¡gn¡f¡cant. Accordingly, management has

concluded thal lhe foreign exchange risk related to the Mun¡c¡pal¡ty's deposits is considered low at June 30, 20'15.

The Municipality's bank balances in commercial banks of $4,648,845 in the General Fund, $95,657 in the Head Start Fund,

$4,800,000 in the Cap¡tal lmprovements Fund and $1,635,535 in other Governmental Funds, were fully collateralized at June 30,

2015. The deposits at GDB of $93 in the General Fund, $3,194,709 in the Debt Service Fund, $3,506,287 in Loans Fund and

$26,918 in Other Govemmenlal Funds are unsecured and uncollateralized, as no collateral is required to be carried by
governmental banks.

NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES

A. MUNICIPAL LICENSE TAXES

As described below in Note 14, the mun¡c¡pal l¡cense tax ¡s levied each year based on the prior yea/s gross revenues for all

commercial and industrial organ¡zat¡ons doing business in the Municipali§ and wh¡ch are not totally or partially exempt lrom

th¡s tax under the lndustrial lncentives Laws of the Commonwealth of Puerlo Rico. All taxpayers are required to file their

declarat¡ons by April 23 ol each year. Municipal license taxes ol $517,298 in the General Fund represenls the amounts due

by the taxpayers at June 30, 2015.

B. SALES AND USE TAXES BECEIVABLES

As described below ¡n Nole 15, the Municipal Legislature approved the ¡mposit¡on of the municipalsales and use tax during

fiscal year 2006-2007. lndividuals, organ¡zations and ent¡ties subject to collect the municipal sales and use tax must file a

tax return to the Municipality. Tax is due each 20b day ol each month based on tax collected in the preced¡ng month.

Therefore, sales tax receivable of $97,349 ¡n the General Fund represents the amounls due by the taxpayers at June 30,

2015.

C. PROPERW TAXES RECEIVABLES

As described below in Note 13, the Municipal Revenue Collection Center ol the Commonwealth of Puerto Hico ¡s responsible

lor the assessment of all real and personal property located w¡thin the Municipal¡ty and for the levy, administration and

collection of the correspond¡ng tax contribution. Property taxes receivable amounting to $28,409 in the Debt Serv¡ce Fund

represents advances from fiscal year 2014-2015, not collected by the Municipality at June 30, 2015.

D. INTERGOVEFNMENTAL RECEIVABLES

State govemment receivable of $156,1 18 ¡n the general fund represents amount due by the Employee's Retirement System

ol the Govemmenl ol Puerto B¡co and ¡ts lnstrumentality (ERS), related to an overpayment deducted by the CRIM from the
gross property tax collect¡ons, lor special laws 2014-2015 invo¡ce. Also, state government receivable of $68,927 ¡n the other
govemmental funds represents expenditures incuned, not yet reimbursed by the State Department of Labor, relaled to Law

52 proposal.
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NOTES T0 THE BAS|C FtNANC|AL STATEMENTS (C0NT|NUED)

NoTE 3 - RECETVABLES (CONTNUED)

E. INTEREST, FINES AND PENALTIES RECEIVABLES

Accounts receivable ol $622,645 in lhe General Fund represents inlerest, f¡nes and penatties charged to taxpayers due to
municipal license taxes debts.

F. RENT,LrcENSESANDPERMITS

Accounts receivable of $119,695 in the General Fund represenls, mainly, amount due by the Commonweallh of Puerto Rico
Department of Education, related lo buses' rental for school transportation.

G. FEDERAL GRANTS BECEIVABLE

Federal grants receivable in the govemmental funds represenl expenditures incuned, not yet reimbursed by the federal
agencies or lhe pass-through granlors. Following is a detail of the federal grants receivable:

Program D,escript¡on Amount

Head Start $ 96,924
Commun¡ty Development Block Grant 76,609
Child Care & Development Block Grant 90,846
Child & Adult Care Food Program 6,956
Public and lndian Housing 11.409

Total $_292Jjg]

NOTE 4 - DUE FROM / TO OTHEB FUNDS

lntelund receivables and payables at June 30, 201S are summarized as follows:

Receivable Payable
Fund Fund Pupose Amount

Payroll and related accruals paid

and not re¡mbursed and other
GeneralFund Head Start reimbursable expenditures $ 126,396

Construction and other related
expenditures paid not

General Fund Loans Fund reimbursed 2O9,AO2

Payroll and related accruals pa¡d

Oher Govemmental and not reimbursed and oher
General Fund Funds reimbursable expend¡tures 317,357

Head Start General Fund Beimbursable expend¡tures 299

Total §__!qI2iU
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NOTE5-CAPITALASSETS

A summary of capital assels and changes occurring in 20'l5lor the Municipality was as follows:

Govemmental Act¡vities
Balance Hetirements/ Balance

July 1, 2014 Add¡t¡ons Reclass¡ñcations June 30, 2015

Cap¡tal asset, not being deprec¡ated:

Land

Construclion in progress

Tolal capital assets not being deprec¡ated

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and bu¡lding improvements

Furniture and fixtures
Veh¡cles and equipment

lnfrastructure

Total capital asseb being deprcciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and building improvements

Fumiture and lixtures

Vehicles and equipment
lnlrastructure

Total accumulated depreciat¡on

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Governmental activit¡es capital assets, nei

$ 6,071,776

5.766.228

11.838.004

51,844,473
3,321,845
7,445,550

16.178.264

78.790.132

(12,045,270\

(2,905,487)
(6,426,547)

12.225.514\

f23.602.818)

55.r 87,314

§_02,02531E

$
1.330.907

1.330,907

5,130,522

335,939
476,469

703.356

6.646.289

(1,297,120)

166,442)
(399,469)
(337.632)

(2.100.663)

4.545.623

§ 5.876.530

$
f5.089.558)

(5.089.558)

(114,543)

(1,373,171)

11.487.7141

r 14,5€
1,373,171

$ 6,07r,776
2.007.577

8.079.353

56,974,995

3, 3,241

6,548,848
16.881.620

83.948.704

(13,342,390)
(2,857,386)
(5,452,845)
(2.563.'146)

124.215.767\

59,732.937

1.487,714

§ f5,@9é50 §_6¿8U290

Depreciation expenses were charged to govemmenlal functioníprograms as lollows:

Govemmental act¡vit¡es Amount

General Government
Public Salety
Public Works
Culture and Recreation

Health and Wellare

Total depreciat¡on expenses

$ 174,841

52,884
634,590

1,024,502

213.846

L41CI.063
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NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

A summary of capital assets and changes occurr¡ng ¡n 2015 for Villa Soigal Project was as follows:

Balance Ret¡rements / Balance

Bus¡ness-type Aclivit¡es July 1, 2014 Additions Reclass¡ficat¡ons June 30, 2015

Capital asset, not be¡ng depreciated:

Land

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Cap¡tal assets, being depreciated:

Land improvements

Building and building improvements

Building equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Maintenance equ¡pment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Land improvements

Building and building ¡mprovements

Building equtpment
Furniture and lixtures
Maintenance equipment

Total accumulated deprec¡ation

Total cap¡tal asseis being depreciated, net

Governmenlal act¡vities capital assets, net

$ $ 58.350

58.350

739,624
3,682,093

856,271

33,584
12.703

s.324.275

(616,354)

(3,196,701)
(333,350)

(33,503)
(12,684)

f4,192.592)

1.131,683

§_lJ_90J¡33

$ 58.350

58.350

739,624

3,682,093
820,953

33,584

12.703

5.288.957

(597,864)
(3,099,268)

(283,566)
(33,443)
(12.610)

(4,026,75'1)

1.262.206

s 1.320,,5=9q

35,318

35,318

(18,490)
(97,433)
(49,784)

(60)
(7 4\

1165,841)

(130.523)

§__1130,520

NOTE 6 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accounis payable and accrued l¡ab¡lities ¡n governmental fund financial statements represent expenditures incurred during f¡scal

year 2014-2015, and not paid by the Mun¡c¡pal¡ty at June 30, 2015. Following ¡s a detail ol these accounts payable and accrued

l¡abil¡t¡es by major fund:

ilaior Governmental Funds
Accounts
Payable

Accrued
Liabilities Total

General Fund

Head Start Fund

Loans Fund

Other Governmental Funds

Total

$ 335,057
47,506

402,488
291.761

§L020.8u

$ 241,117 $ 576,174

47,506
402,488
291.761

s 241.117 $ 1.317.929
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NOTE 7 - BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE

As described in Note 10, the Municipality issues general and special obligation bonds and notes, principally, to provide funds lor
the acquisition and construction ol maior capital fac¡l¡t¡es, to pay debt ¡ncuned in prior years, and to cover the expend¡tures of a

special event. At June 30,2015, the govemment-w¡de and fund linancial slatements presented the following accounts payable,

regard¡ng to the outstanding balance of these bonds and notes:

D,escription

Pdncipal

Accrued interesls

Tolal

$ 1,425,000

536,854

L1JDL03I

NOTE 8 - DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL UNITS

As ol June 30, 2015, balance due to other govemmental units cons¡sts ol the follow¡ng:

Govemmenlal Agency

General Seruice Administrat¡on

Puerto Rico Water and Sewer Authority

Municipal Revenue Collection Center

Puedo Rico Department of Treasury
Puerto Rico Department ol Labor -

Unemployment lnsurance
Puerto Rico Department ol Labor -

Drivers lnsurance

lnternal Revenue Serv¡ce

Total

$ 2,s64
201,276
124,538

36,337

13,095

2,470
56.079

$_430J59

NOTE 9 - DEFEBRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

A. llunicipal license taxes - Unavailable revenues related to municipal license taxes amounting to $509,033 in the General

Fund represents the amounts due by the taxpayers, measurable but not available at June 30, 2015.

B. Sales and use taxes - Unavailable revenues related to sales and use taxes amounting to $139,699 ¡n Other Govemmental

Funds represents the amount received by the taxpayers, mainlained in cash balance at June 30, 2015, but not recogn¡zed

as revenues for the liscal year 2014-2015.

C. lnterests, fines and penalties- Unavailable revenues amounling to $619,112 ¡n the General Fund represents lhe

penalties applied to the taxpayers that d¡d not paid in a t¡mely manner or d¡d not paid the mun¡cipal license taxes. Th¡s amount

has nol been collected at June 30, 2015.
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NOTE 9 - DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES (CONTINUED)

D. Federal Grants -Unava¡lable revenues presented in the other Govemmental Funds represents the porlion ol federal grants

received forwhich qual¡fy¡ng expenditures have not been incurred. Deferred inflows ol resources from the federal govemment

are as lollows:

Program Description Amount

Public Assislance Grants

Child & Adult Care Food Program

Others

Total

$ 23,989

14,155

30,178

§___§E322

NOTE 10 - GENERAL LONG.TERM DEBTS

Long-term liability act¡vity for the year ended on June 30, 2015, was as follows:

Govemmental Activities

Description
Beginn¡ng

Balance, as
réstated

Ending
Balance

Due Within
One Yeal

Bonowings Payments or
or Additions fHuctions

Bonds and Notes Payable

Property Tax Debt - Law 42

Property Tax Debt - Law '146

Estimated landf ill closure and
post-closure care cost

Compensated absences

Claims and Judgments

Net Pens¡on Liabil y

Total

$ 20,402,000
888,021

136,202

197,75'l

2,618,570

54,775
39.271.391

$_03,508¿10

$ 2,315,000

195,787

3.302.41;

s s.813.f97

$ (1,710,000)
(26,730)

(7,567)

(17,934)

(18,010)

s (1.780-241)

$ 21,007,000 $

861,291

128,635

r79,817

2,814,357
36,765

42,573.801

§§2,601,600

1,755,000

28,409
7,567

18,831

207,000

§__2010,E02

Business-tvpe Activities

Description
Beginning
Balance

Borowings
or Additions

Payments or
Deductions

Ending
Balance

Due W'rthin
Onc Year

Eusinesstvpe Activit¡es

V¡lla Soigal Project Mortgage

Total

$ 635.725

$___63§J25

$

§-
s (124.317)

s . t124Jn

$ 511.408 $ 121.957

s 511,40q §__l2L95Z
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A. GENERAL OBLIGATIONS BONDSAND NOTES PAYABLE

The Municipality issues general and special obligation bonds and notes, principally, to provide funds for the acquisition and

construction ol major capital facilities, to pay debt incurred in prior years, and to cover the expenditures of a special event. Bonds

and notes payables as of June 30, 2015, are comprised of the following individual issues:

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

$3,420,000, Series 1996, for construct¡on purposes, payable in annual installments ranging lrom

$70,000 to $315,000, excluding variable interest lrom 4.70% to 6.58%, through January 1, 2016 $ 315,000

$1,800,000, Series 1997, for construct¡on purposes, payable in installments ranging lrom $20,000 to

$165,000, excluding variable interest from 4.87% to 6.56%, through July 1, 2021 830,000

$1,510,000, Series 2001, for construction purposes, payable in annual installments ranging from

$20,000 to $135,000, excluding variable interest from 2.70% to 5.60%, through July 1, 2026 1,010,000

$1,110,000, Ser¡es 2005, for construction purposes, payable in annual installments ranging from

$50,000 to $105,000, excluding variable interest kom 3.28% to 4.80%, through January 1,2019 380,000

$1,150,000, Series 2007, for conslruct¡on purposes, payable in annual installments rang¡ng from

$20,000 to $95,000, excluding variable interest hom 1.53% to 7.00%, through July 1, 2031 935,000

$485,000, Series 2007, lor construct¡on purposes, payable in annual installments ranging lrom

$30,000 lo $65,000, excluding variable ¡nteresl lrom 1.53o/o to 7.00%, through July 1, 2016 65,000

$967,000, Series 2008, for construct¡on purposes, payable in annual installments ranging lrom

$80,000 to $ 142,000, exclud¡ng variable interest from 1.43% to 6.00o/0, through July 1 , 2017 272,000

$3,445,000, Series 2008, for construction purposes, payable in annual installments ranging from

$50,000 to $295,000, excluding variable interest lrom L53% to 7.50%, thlough July '1, 2032 2,985,000

$660,000, Series 2010, lor construct¡on purposes, payable in annual installments ranging lrom

$75,000 to $120,000, excluding variable interest from 6.00% to 7.00%, through July 1, 2016 120,000

$990,000, Series 2010, lor construct¡on purposes, payable in annual installments ranging from

$10,000 to $80,000, excluding variable interest from 6.00 to 7.00%, through July l, 2034 885,000

$1,510,000, Series 2010, for construct¡on purposes, payable in annual installments ranging kom

$20,000 to $130,000, excluding variable interest from 6.00% to 7.50%, through July 1, 2034 I,350,000

$605,000, Series 2010, for construction purposes, payable in annual ¡nstallments ranging from

$5,000 to $50,000, exclud¡ng var¡able ¡nterest from 6.00% lo 7.50%, through July 1, 2034 545,000

$1,510,000, Ser¡es 2010, for construct¡on purposes, payable ¡n annual ¡nstallments ranging lrom

$25,000 to $120,000, excluding variable ¡nleresl from 4.75% to 6.75%, through July 1, 2034 1,335,000

$2,315,000, Series 2014, for construct¡on purposes, payable in annual installments rang¡ng lrom

$35,000 to $200,000, excluding variable ¡nlerest Írom 6.00% to 7.50%, through July 1, 2039 2,280,000
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NOTE 1O - GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBTS (CONTINUED)

A. GENERAL OBLIGATIONS BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

$2,70,000, Series 201 1, for construction purposes, payable in annual installments ranging from

$60,000 to $255,000, excluding variable interest ÍÍom 6.00% to 7.50%, through July 1, 2030 2,400,000

$275,000, Series 2011, for operat¡onal purposes, payable in annual installments ranging trom $30,000

to $50,000, excluding variable interest from 6.00% to 7.00%, through July 1,2017 95,000

$1,275,000, Series 2012, for construct¡on purposes, payable in annual ¡nstallments ranging from

$140,000 to $225,000, excluding variable ¡nterest trom 6.00% to 7.50%, through July 1, 2019 810,000

$2,075,000, Series 2012, for construct¡on purposes, payable in annual installments ranging lrom

$50,000 to $190,000, exclud¡ng variable interest from 6.00% to 7.50o/", lhrough July 1, 2032 1,920,000

$1,730,000, Series 2014, for construct¡on purposes, payable in annual installments ranging from

$25,000 to $150,000, excluding variable interest from 6.00% to 7.50o/0, through July 1, 2038 1,680,000

$1,260,000, Series 20'12, for operaiional purposes, payable in annual installments ranging írom

$145,000 to $220,000, excluding variable ¡nterest from 6.00% to 7.50%, through July 1, 2019 795.000

Total General0bligations $1L00Z.000

These bonds and notes are payable with the following Mun¡cipality's resources:
.! Special ad valorem property tax, wh¡ch is restricted for debt seruice and retained by the Govemment Development Bank for

Puerto Rico for such purposes;
,, Munic¡pal sales taxes resources restricled for debl service, and;

* operat¡onal resources.

The annual requirements to amort¡ze the general obligations bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2015 are as follows:

Year Ending PÍncipal lnterest
June3o, payment payment Total

2016 $ 1,75s,ooo $ 1,373,203 $3,128,203
2017 1,347,000 1,294,939 2,641,939

2018 1,230,000 1,244,555 2,474,555

2019 1,320,000 1,160,712 2,480,712

2020 840,000 1,070,627 1,910,627

2021-2025 4,395,000 4,525,502 8,924,502

2026-2030 5,480,000 2,879,751 8,359,751

2031-2035 3,525,000 1,0¿14,651 4,569,651

2036-20,m 1.115.000 201.000 1.316.000

Total $-21Jtr7000 $-Irt798,940 $-35,805,940
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I.¡OTE 1O - GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBTS (CONTINUED)

The mortgage payable bythe Business-type Act¡v¡ties ¡s owed by Villa Soigal Project and consisls of a 8o/o mortgage note, payable

in monthly installments of $13,202, including interest, until 2019, collateral¡zed w¡th land and bu¡lding.

Annual requirements to maturity of the mortgage are as follows:

Year Ending Principal lnterest
June3o, payment payment Total

2016
2017

2018
2019

Total

$ 121,9s7
'137,148

146,333

105.970

$_i1L40E

s 29,88s
21,276
12,091

2.672

E__65.92t

$ 151,842

158,424

158,424
108,642

s 577.ít32

B. PROPERTY TAX DEBTS - LAW 42

On January 26, 2000, Act No. 42 was enacted to authorize the CRIM to enter into a financing agreement ol up to $200 million, for

a term not exceeding 30 years. The linancing agreement allows for the financing of a debt that the municipalities of Puerto Rico

have with the CRIM, arising lrom the final settlements ol property tax advances versus actual collections through f¡scal year 2000.

The amounts that lhe municipalities will collect Írom the additional properly taxes resuhing from the ¡ncreases in lhe subsidy from

the Commonwealth to the municipalities are assigned through this law to repay such loan. The increase in this subsidy was the

result of the Public Law No. 238 of August 15, 1999.

ln addition, on February 12, 2003, the Municipality entered into a repayment agreement with the Govemment Development Bank

for Puerto Bico (GDB) and the CRIM, to pay off the excess of property tax advances through fiscal year 2000 and 2001. The

CRIM retains the payment ÍÍom the property tax advances of the Municipality. The amounts retained by the CRIM are remitted to

GDB on July 'l of each year through July '1, 2032. The outstand¡ng balance of the note payable to the CBIM at June 30, 2015

amounted to $861,291.

C. PHOPERTY TAX DEBT- LAW 146

On September 24, 2002, the CRIM, on behalf of the municipalities of Puerto Rico, entered into a financing agreement with GDB

pursuant to the provisions ol Law No. 146 of October 11, 2001. The purpose of this financing agreement was to extingu¡sh ¡n

advance certa¡n bonds payable issued by the Public Finance Corporalion, a subsid¡ary of the GDB, which were originally issued

to pay certa¡n property tax receivables owned by the mun¡cipalities of Puerto Rico through 1996. The outstanding balance of the

note payable to the CRIM at June 30, 2015 amounted to $128,635.
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NOTE 1O - GENERAL LONG.TERM DEBTS (COI'ITINUED)

D. PROPERTY TAX DEBTS

The annual requirements to amort¡ze the property tax debts (Law 42 and Law 1¿f6) outstanding as of June 30, 2015 are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30,

Principal lnterest
payment payment Total

2016
2017

2018
2019
2020

2021-2025

2026-2030
2031-2035

Total

S 3s,s76
37,761
39,658
41,675
€,818

256,257

324,057

200.725

$109.921

$ 56,081

54,106

52,019

49,813
47,482

197,399

114,859

18.143

§__109,902

$ 92,057
91,867
91,677

91,488
91,300

453,656
448,916
2t8.868

$_ltz9.E29

E. COMPENSATEDABSENCES

The govemment-wide statement of net position includes $2,814,357 ol accrued sick leave benefits, and accrued vacation benefits,

representing the Municipal¡ty's commitment lo fund such costs from future operat¡ons.

NOTE ff - LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COST OBLIGATION

The Mun¡c¡pal¡ty owns a mun¡c¡pal solid waste landfill and adopted the required provisions of Statement No. 18,'Acaunting for

Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closue and Post Closure Care Costs', issued by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board

(GASB No. 18) and the regulat¡ons set forth by the U.S. Env¡ronmental Protection Agency (EPA) ¡n ¡ts "Solid Waste Disposal

Facility Criteria', issued on october 9, 1991. State and federal laws and regulations requ¡re lhe Municipality to place a f¡nal cover

on its landfill site when closed and perlorm cerlain maintenance and monitoring funclions at the landfill site for 30 years after

closure. Although closure and post closure care costs will be paid only near or after the date that the landf¡ll stops accept¡ng

waste, the Municipality reports a portion of these closure and post closure care costs as an operat¡ng expense ¡n each period

based on landfill capacity used as of each stalement of net position date. The Mun¡cipality d¡scont¡nued its landlill operations and

ceased to accept solid waste in January 1993. Post closure care procedures were assumed by the Municipal¡ty and the closure

process was completed in January 17, 1997.

The total est¡mated liability for post closure care cosls has been determined in $179,817 as of June 30, 2015.
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NOTE 12 - DEBT BETIREMENT

Revenues of the Debt Service Fund consist of the ad-valorem property taxes wh¡ch are recognized as revenue when collecled

from taxpayers and reported by the Mun¡c¡pal Revenue Collection Center of the Commonwealth of Puerlo Rico to the Municipality.

These property taxes are accumulated by the Municipal Revenue Collection Center in costs of the general obligalions bonds

issued by the Municipality. Payments are made to the Govemment Development Bank of the Commonwealth of Puerlo Rico from

such accumulated funds by the Municipal Revenue Collection Center of Puerto R¡co.

t'lOTE f 3 - PROPERTY TAXES

The Municipal Revenue Collection Center of lhe Commonwealth of Pueno Rico is responsible for the assessment of all real and

personal property located w¡th¡n the Municipality and for the levy, admin¡stration and collection of the corresponding tax

contr¡bution.

The property tax contribut¡on is levied each year over the appraised value of the property at the beg¡nn¡ng of the calendar year.

The real property assessment ¡s based on the current value existing in the year'1957 and the personal property at the current

value at the date ol the assessmenl.

The tax rate per annum ¡s 9.08% for real propefi and 5.83% for personal property of which 1.03% ol both belong to the

Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and 8.05o/. and 4.80o/,, respectively, belongs to the Munic¡pal¡ty. From the portion belonging to the

Municipality, 6.00"/" and 3.00%, respectively, represents the Municipali§'s bas¡c tax rate that is appropriated for general purposes

and therefore accounted for through the General Fund.

The remaining portions 2.25% for realproperty and 2.00o/" lorpersonal property represents the ad-valorem propertytaxes withheld

by the Municipal Hevenue Collection Center of the Commonwealth of Puerto Bico and restricted for debt service, which is
accounted for through the Debt Service Fund (See Note 8). The Municipali§ has not reached the maximum statutory tax rate

limit for the basic tax wh¡le there ¡s no l¡mitation for the ad-valorem tax rate.

The Commonwealth of Puerlo R¡co grants complete real property tax exonerat¡on on the fir§ $15,000 assessed valual¡on on

residential units occupied by their owners. However, the Municipality receives the full amount levied, except for residential units

assessed at less than $3,500 on which a complete exempt¡on is granted. The Mun¡c¡pal Bevenue Collection Center, instead of

the property taxpayer, becomes the source of payment in these cases.

The Municipality grants a complete exemption from personal property taxes up to an assessment value of $50,000 to reta¡lers

w¡lh an annual net sales volume ol less than $150,000. The Municipal Revenue Collection Center advances to the Municipality,

on monthly payments, 100'/o of the contr¡bution assessed overpropertyfor each fiscal year. ln accordance to Law, these advances

w¡ll be contibutions by the Municipal Revenue Collection Center from taxpayers. The Municipal Revenue Collection Center
peñodically informs to the Municipali§ the amounts collecled from taxpayers and applied to outstanding advances.

The Mun¡c¡pal¡ty records as revenue in the general lund the property lax contribut¡on when rece¡ved from monthly advances from

Mun¡c¡pal Revenue Collection Center.

Due to the fact that collections of property tax are appl¡ed to the advances of property tax paid by the Mun¡c¡pal Revenue Collection

Center, the amortizalion of the advance at end of year was not ava¡lable due to that is in process of verification by extemal
aud¡tors.
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NOTE 14 -MUNICIPAL LICENSE TAXES

The municipal l¡cense tax is levied each year based on the prior yea/s gross revenues for all commerc¡al and industrial

organ¡zations doing business in the Municipali§ and wh¡ch are not totally or partially exempt from this tax under the lndustr¡al

lncentives Laws of the Commonwealth of Puerto Hico. All taxpayers are requ¡red to lile their declarations by April 23 of each year.

The tax rates are as follows:

. 1.50% for financ¡al ¡nst¡tutions.

. 1.00o/" for savings and loan associations.

. 0.50% for other organ¡zat¡ons over $500,000.. 0.40% for other organizations up to $500,000.

Taxes are payable in two equal semi-annual installments on July 1 and Januarl following the date of levy. lf they are paid with

declarat¡on, the taxpayer ¡s granted a 5% ol discount. Collections of taxes during cunent f¡scal year, appl¡cable to the next fiscal
year, are recorded as unearned revenues ¡n the General Fund.

NOTE 15 - SALES AND USE TAXES

On Ju|y4,2006, the Leg¡slature of the Commonwealth of Puerto Bico approved Act No. 117 ("Act 117)which amends the Puerto

Rico lnternal Revenue Code of 1994 to provide for a sales and use tax of 5.5% to be imposed by the Commonwealth Govemment.

Act 117 also authorizes each mun¡c¡palty government to impose a municipal sales and use tax of 1.5%. This municipal sales and

use tax has in general the same tax base and l¡m¡tations (except for unprocessed foods) as those provided by the
Commonwealth's sales and use tax.

Section 6189 of the Puerto Rico lnternal Revenue Code of 1994, as amended, authorizes the Municipalities ¡n Puerto Rico to
impose a sales and use tax to consumers. This tax must be imposed ¡n conformity wilh the base, exemptions and limitations

contalned Subtitle BB of the Code. The Municipal Sales Tax is specifically imposed overall sales lransact¡ons of taxable ¡lems

and combined transact¡ons (as def¡ned by the mun¡c¡pal ¡ntemal regulat¡on) taken place w¡th¡n mun¡c¡pal lim¡ts. The Mun¡c¡pal Tax
is also specifically imposed over the purchase price for the use, storage or consumpt¡on of taxable transact¡ons (as defined by
the municipal internal regulation) taken place with¡n mun¡cipal l¡m¡ts.

The Munic¡pal Leg¡slature approved the imposition of the municipal sales and use tax dur¡ng fiscal year 2006-2007. lndiv¡duals,

organizations and ent¡t¡es subject to collect the municipal sales and use tax must file a tax retum to the Municipality. Tax is due

each 20h day of each month based on tax collected in the preced¡ng month. Resources are recorded ¡n the General Fund.

Also, on July 29, 2007, the Govemor of Puerto Bico signed into Law an amendment of Act No. 1 17, H.B. 2193 known as Act No.

80. The most significant amendments were: f¡rst, to un¡fom the tax rate at 7% of which the municipalities will collect 1% and the
Puerto Rico Treasury Department the other 6%, 0.51% of the 6% belongs to the municipality and it is distributed through three
separate funds: Municipal Development Fund, Municipal Bedempt¡on Fund and Municipal lmprovements Fund; secondly the
establishment of a Local Commercial Rule and the eliminat¡on of source and nexus rules to impose the sale and use tax. These
funds are administered by the Govemment Development Bank for Puerto Hico. Finally, the Law restricts the use ol the funds by
the mun¡cipalities to certain specific activities.

Puerto R¡co Law 40 of 2013, as amended, will reduce the total municipal sales and use tax to 1% (from the previous total 1.5%)

effective Februarl, 2014, which would el¡minate the 0.5% collected by the PR Treasury.
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NOTE 16- INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES

lntergovernmental revenues cons¡st primar¡ly of funds received from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, "in lieu of tax" payments

from the Quasi-public Corporation, Puerto Hico Electr¡c Power Authority, and lederal financ¡al ass¡stance received from federal

govemment.

Grants and subsidies received from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and federal agencies include, among others, a general

subsidy for uóan development and capital improvemenls. lntergovernmental revenues are accounted for through the General

Fund except for those directly related to urban development and capital improvements, which are accounted for through the

Special Revenue and the Capital Project Funds. Federal Financial Ass¡stance is recorded in the Special Revenue Fund.

NOTE 17 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS

lnterfund transfers during the fiscal year ended at June 30, 2015, are summadzed as follows:

Transfer out Transfer ln Purpose

General Fund

General Fund

Debt Service Fund

Debt Serv¡ce Fund

Total

Debt Service Fund

Cap¡tal lmprovements

Fund

Other Governmental

Funds

General Fund

Debt ret¡rement

Special fund created by 0rdinance
Number 46-2014-2015, lorconstruct¡on

and ¡mprovements

Cash transfer to cover special activit¡es

To cover operalional expenditure

$ 362,505

4,800,000

554,899

1,613

s s.719.017

NOTE f8- EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT PLAN

The Employee's Ret¡remenl System of the Govemment of Puerto Rico and its instrumentality (EBS) ¡s the administrator of a cost-

sharing mulliple-employer retirement system establ¡shed by the Commonwealth ol Puerto Rico. The ERS was created under

Puerto Rico Law ¿147, approved on May 15, 1951, as amended, and became effect¡ve on January 1, 1952. ERS covers all regular

employees of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, its ¡nstrumentalities, and municipalities and components units not covered by

their own retirement systems.

Part¡cipation is mandalory for govemmental and municipal employees, except for members ol the Legislature, Government

Secretaries, Head ol Agencies and Public lnstrumentality, Assislants ol the Govemor, the Comptroller of the Puerto Bico,

Gubernalor¡al Board and Committee appointees and Exper¡mental Service Station employees. Temporary and transitory

employees are excluded lrom participation ¡n the System. EHS provides retirement, death and disability benefits. Disability

ret¡rement benefits are available lo members for occupational and non-occupational disabilil¡es. Retirement benefits depend upon

age at retirement and number ol years of credited service, and their hiring date. Benef¡ts vest afier ten years of plan participation.

The Municipality adopted the requirements ol GASBS No. 25 lor all the career employees that are covered under the

Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Employee's Retirement Syslem, a multiple-employer public employee rel¡rement system,

established by State Laws.
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NOTE 1& EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT PLAI'I (CONTINUED)

Law Number 305 of September 24, 1999, amended Puerto Rico Law Number ¿147, establishing a savings program called

"Retirement System 2000'. Allemployees active in the system as of December 31, 1999 may have elected to transferfrom def¡ne

contribution programs to the new savings program (a delined contribut¡on plan). Employees in the savings program may have

contribute from a minimum of 8.275% up to a max¡mum ol 10% ol their monthly salary, and will invested in an account which will

e¡ther: (a) eam a f¡xed rate based on the two-year Constant Matur¡ty Treasury Note or, (b) eam a rate equal to 75% of the return

of the System's ¡nveslment portfol¡o (net of management fees), or (c) eam a combination of both altematives. lf at time of

retirement accumulaled benefits amount to $10,000 or less may have elected to rece¡ve a lump sum distribution up to the
accumulated benefits. Under the new program the ret¡rement age ¡s reduced from 65 to 60 for those employees who ioined the

current plan on or after April 1, 1990.

Puerto Rico Law Number 3 of April 4, 2013 created a new hybrid system incorporating elements ol defined benefit and defined

coniribution plans. As of July 1, 2013, every employee who is a participant of lhe EBS who had not retired as of June 30, 2013,

and any new part¡cipant who joins after that date, shall become part of the Def¡ned Contr¡but¡on Hybrid Program. As per Puedo

R¡co Law Number 3 of 2013, new prov¡sions shall apply to employees who participate in the System that (1) began to work before
January 1, 2000, (2) as of June 30, 2013, are not partic¡pants of the Betirement Sav¡ngs Account Program establ¡shed in Chapter
3 of Law Number 3, and (3) as of June 30, 2013, do not meet the requirements of years of service and age to retire that are

required in Chapter 2 of Law Number 3, or having met such requ¡rements did not elect to ret¡re before July 1, 2013. The sav¡ngs

accounls under the Retirement System 2000 ol employees who joined the System for the first time on or afler January 1, 2000,

shall be rolled over to the Def¡ned Contribution Hybdd Program. Additionally, those who could retire on or before June 30, 2013
because they are 60 years old, may retire on any later date, and they shall be entitled to receive the annuity that could be acqu¡red

w¡th the balance ol the contributions under the Ret¡rement Savings Account Program which are fansfened to the Del¡ned

Contr¡but¡on Hybr¡d Program.

Under the plans, the employees and employer porl¡ons are contr¡buted, for wh¡ch, the employee amount is withheld from salaries.

The authority underwhich the funding policy and the obligations to contribute to the ERS and System 2000 by the plans'members,

employers and other contribut¡ng entities (state of municipal contribut¡ons), are established or may be amended by law:

. Up to June 30, 2013, covered employees were required by Commonwealth statute to contr¡bute 5.25olo for the first $550 of

monthly salary plus 8.275ol" for the excess of this amount, or on the altemative, 8.275% of all salary.

. Atter June 30, 2013, every participant of the Hybrid Program shall compulsorily have to contribute 10% of his/her salary while
he/she is an employee. The partic¡pants of the Hybrid may voluntarily contr¡bute to their account an amount in addition to the
one established here. These contributions shall be credited to the contribution account of each parl¡c¡pant of the Hybrid

Program. Employees who contribute to the retirement system in a special plan with the ERS in coordination with their
contributions to Social Secudty, as defined bythe ERS administrator, will be required to contribute 7ol" oftheir monthlysalaries
up to $550 for FY 2014, to be increased to 8.5'/o for FY 2015, and linally 10% for FY 2016 and all future perioG.

. The Municipality contr¡buted to the system 9.275% of the participating employee's salaries for the liscal year ended ¡n June
30, 2013 and prior years. Puerto Rico Law 'l l6 of July 6, 201 1 ¡ncreased the employer contr¡bution rate requ¡red from the
Municipality. The contribut¡on rate increased from 9.275% to 20.TTS'A,lobeimdemented in ¡ncrementa.l 1% to 1.25% annual
¡ncreased between those years. The same law provided that for f¡scal years 2012, 2013, and 2014, the Puerto Rico Office of
Management and Budget would contribute these increases for all Munic¡pal¡ties. Start¡ng in fiscal year 2014-2015, the
Mun¡c¡pal¡ty ¡s required to contribute 12.275% of the part¡cipating employee's salaries forthat period, and the rate w¡ll increase
to '13.275% ¡n FY 2016,14.525%inFY 2017,15.775% in FY 2018,17.025o/oinFY 2019,18.275"/"in FY 2020, and f¡nally to
'19.525% ¡n FY 2021 and all luture periods.
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NOTE f8- EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED)

Before July 1, 2013, all employees that did not elect to transfer for the System 2000 Savings program and who at the time of

employment were 55 years old or less were el¡gible to parlicipate in the defined contribution syslem, with pension benefits for
participants as follows:

YEARS OF
SERVICE

30 or more

30 or more

30 or more

Less than 30,

more than 10

PARTICIPANT'S
AGE

55 or less

58 or more

65 or more

t{/A

PENSION BENEFITS

65% of the average of the three years ol highest salary during the

employee's seruice period.

75% of the average of the lhree years of highest salary dur¡ng the

employee's service period (employees h¡red before April 1, 1990).

75% of the average of the three years of highest salary during the

employee's service period (employees h¡red after April 1, 1990).

1.5ol" of their average compensation for each year ol credil serv¡ce lor

the remaining yean.

After July 1, 2013, both the delined contribut¡on and System 2000 Sav¡ngs systems w¡ll be converted to the new Hybrid Delined

Contribution System. The following the changes implemented by Puerto Rico Law 3 ol 2013, all employe€s that elect to retire,

regardless of the previous ret¡rement system they part¡c¡pated in, will be entitled to ret¡re and receive the¡r benefits under ihe

following cond¡t¡ons:

PREVIOUS RETIREMENT

PROGRAiJl

Savings System ("System

20oo)

Savings System ("System

2000)

Sav¡ngs System ('System

2000')

Delined Benelit Program
(employed before April 1,

1990).

Delined Benefit Program
(hired after April l , 1990 but

belore January 1, 2000).

All other employees not

covered above.

YEARS OF
SERVICE

¡UA

rüA

NUA

25 or 10 years

0f more,

respectively

10 years

'10 years

PARTICIPANT'S
AGE. AS OF

JUNE 30.2013

60 years or more

55 to 59 years

EE

54 or 57 years or
less, respectively

64 yean or less

65 years or more

ELIGIBLE AGE TO RETIRE

May retire ai any time in lhe future after June 30, 2013.

May ret¡re once part¡cipant meets the prcdetermined

age of 61 to 65 years of age, respeclively.

May retire at any t¡me in the future after June 30, 2013,

but only for public ofl¡cers ¡n h¡gh-r¡sk pos¡tions.

May retire once part¡cipant meets the predetemined

age ol 59 lo 6'l years of age and 10 years of service.

May ret¡re once participant meets the predeterm¡ned

age of 65 yean of age.

May retire at any time in the future after June 30, 2013.
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Public Officers in High-R¡sk Posilions may voluntarily opt to retire alter reaching the age of 55 and 30 years of serv¡ce. Betirement

shall be mandatory on the date the participant reaches both 30 years of serv¡ce and the age of 58. Retirement shall be opi¡onal

for the members of the System in active service, on and afterthe date they have attained the age of 55 years and have completed

at least 25 years of cred¡table service; and for members of the System who having reached the age of 58 years, and have

completed at least 10 years ol creditable service. The members of the Pol¡ce shall also have the option of a retirement annu¡ty on

and aller the dale on which they have atta¡ned the age of 50 years and have completed at least 25 years of credilable service.

Any participani whose separation from the service occurs prior to having ana¡ned lhe age of 58 years, who shall have completed

at least 10 years of creditable service, and who shall have not applied for, nor received reimbursement of accumulated

contributions shall be entitled to receive a deferred ret¡rement annuity. Said parlic¡panls shall receive a deferred retirement annu¡ty

which shall commence upon attaining lhe age of 58 years or after attaining the age of 50 years ¡n the case of pol¡cemen or firemen,

and 55 years in the case of lhe other participants, ¡f they have completed at least 25 years of service ¡n one case or the other.

For employees who were hired before April 1, 1990, the amount of the annuity shall be one and '1.50o/o ol the average

compensal¡on multiplied by the number of years of creditable service up to 20 years, plus 2% of lhe average compensation

multipl¡ed by the number of years of creditable service in excess of 20 years up to June 30, 2013. For employees hired after April

1, 1990, the amount of the annuity shall be 1.5% of the average compensalion multiplied by the years of accredited services up

to June 30, 20l3. From July 1, 2013 onwards, part¡cipants in the ret¡rement system will not accumulate new years of service nor

rece¡ve accreditat¡on for previously unrecognized service years, transfer contr¡butions, or retum confibut¡ons for penods ending

on or belore June 30, 2013.

However, a minimum pension of $500 per month, effective July 1, 2013, is hereby fixed for those part¡cipants who ret¡red in lrom

the retirement systems. Every pensioner who receives pension of less than $500 per month shall receive, effective July 1, 2013,

the increase require for hilher pension to be $500.

A variety of signif¡canl actuarial assumptions are used to determ¡ne the standard measure of the p€nsion benefit obl¡gat¡on and

these assumpt¡ons are summarized below:

. The present value of the luture pens¡on payments was computed by using a discount of 9%.

. Future pension payments reflect an assumption of a 6ol" salary increase.

The amount of the total pension benefit obl¡gation is based on a standard¡zed measurement established by GASBS No. 27,

F¡nancial Reponing for Delined Benefit Pension Plans and Notes Disclosurc fot Def¡ned Contibutions Plans. The standardized

measuremenl ¡s the acluarial present value of est¡mated defined pension benefils, adjusted for the effects of projected salary

increases and step-rate benefits, estimated to be payable in the luture as a result ol employee services pedormed to date. The

measure is intended to help users assess the System's funding status on a going{oncem basis, assess progress made in

accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, and make comparisons among other public retirement systems. The

measure ¡s independent of the actuarial funding method used to determine contribul¡ons to the plan.

Contr¡but¡ons in 2013 and prior years were made based on percentages established by the law. Such percentage has not been

based on actuarial studies, as required by accounting princ¡ples generally accepted ¡n the Un¡ted States of America. An aciuarial

compilation ol the annual contribution applicable to the Municipality has not been prepared. Accordingly, the accounts by which

the actual contributions differ from the required actuarial contributions are not known.
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NOTE 18- EMPLOYEE'S FEfIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED)

The membenship of retirees and beneficiaries cunently receiving benefits and terminated employees entitled to benefits, but not

yet rece¡v¡ng benelits, and active employees and the d¡stribut¡on of active employees between vested and non-vested ¡s not

read¡ly available.

ln the event of the death of any participant who had contributions accrued in the new hybr¡d system, conlributions would be

re¡mbursed to heirs or other des¡gnated persons as detem¡ned by the parlicipant, equal to the onginal contributions plus

undistributed income up to the date of the participant's death. ln the case of total and permanent d¡sability or due lo terminal

illness, the participanl will be entitled lo his or hers contribulions in a lump sum or an annuity at the option of the partic¡pant. The

Puerto Rico Employee Retiremenl Syslem also established a disability benefits program, which may provide lemporary annuities

by means ol disability insurance in the event of total and permanent disab¡lities, and is funded by a maximum of 0.25olo of
participant's salary.

Additional benefits are annually awarded lor participants of the defined contribution and hybr¡d retiremenl systems, but not the

Ret¡rement 2000 System, now replaced by the hybrid system. These benefits rnclude a medicine bonus of $100 provided by July
'1sth, a Chr¡stmas bonus ol $200 provided by December 20th, and contribution of $100 by the Systems to employees' medical

insurance plans. These additional benefits are funded by a spec¡al contribut¡on by the Mun¡c¡pality to the systems beg¡nn¡ng from

fiscal year 2013-2014 onwards ¡n the order of $2,000 for every pensioner ¡n the Systems who began to work before December

31 , 1999.

The total pension expend¡tures recorded in the category of administration for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 was

approximately $382,0114. All employees who at the time of employment are 55 years old or less are eligible to participate in the

System. No benelit ¡s payable ¡f the participant receives a refund of his accumulated conlribut¡ons.

As per the requirements of the GASB Statements No. 67 and 68, ESB is required, as the pension plan's administrator, to provide

lo each of ¡ts part¡c¡pating employers aud¡ted actuarial and financial ¡nformation used in the calculat¡on of their proportionate share

ol the plan's net pens¡on l¡ability, pension expense and defened outf lows/inflows of resources related to pensions as ol the

measurement date. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the measurement date is June 30, 2014. ln addition, the ESR has

to provide all the required actuarial and historical data to be reported ¡n the notes to the f¡nancial statements of the Municipality

and as Required Supplementary lnformation (RSl).

The h¡storical trend ¡nlormation regarding the accumulation of assets and pens¡on benefit obligation in the ERS is not available.

For the ten-year trend ¡nformation, reler to the separately issued financial stalements of the ERS as of and for the fiscal year

ended June 30, 2015. The P.R. Ret¡remenl Plan Adm¡nistrat¡on provides additional ¡nformation ol the ERS. They issue a public

available financial report that includes financ¡al statements and required supplementary informat¡on lor ERS, as a component unit

of the Commonwealth ol Puerto Rico. That report may be obtained by writ¡ng to the Adm¡nistrat¡on al P0 Box 42003, Minillas

Station, San Juan, P.H. 00940.

NOTE 19- POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

ln addition to the pension benelits described ¡n note 15, the Mun¡c¡pality is requ¡red to cover annually the 3% ¡ncrease in the

retirement plan of its ret¡red employees, as required by Commonwealth's laws. Also, the Mun¡cipality ¡s requ¡red to finance costs

related to the applicalion of certa¡n 'Spec¡al Laws" issued by the Commonwealth Govemment. Those Special Laws granted

increases in pens¡ons and other benefits to ret¡red employees of the Municipality such as medicines bonus, Christmas bonuses

and death benefits. However, beginning July 1,2013, Act No. 3 of 2013 eliminated all Special Law benefits to future retirees.
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NOTE 2F CONTINGENCIES

A. CLAIMSANOJUDGMENTS

The Municipality is, at present, a defendant in a number of legal matters that arise from alleged improper application of policies

and negligence ¡n the ord¡nary course of the Munic¡pality's aclivities. With respect to pending litigation, lhe Municipality has

reported l¡abilit¡es of $36,765 in the government wide slatement of net pos¡t¡ons.

It is management's opinion, based on the advice of the legal counsel, that the potential claims against the Mun¡cipal¡ty not covered

by insurance will materially affect the linancial resources for its payment.

ln addition, the Municipality is a defendant or co-delendant in several legal proceedings, which are in discovery stage. Certain ol
these claims are covered by insurance. Legal counsels with the ¡nformat¡on currently available cannot determine the final outcome
of these proceeding. However, it has been the Municipal¡ty's experience thal such actions are settled for amounts substant¡ally

less than the claim amounts.

B. FEDERALGRANTS

ln the normalcourse of operations, the Municipality receives grants from various Federal and Stale agencies. The grant programs

are subject to audit by agents of the granting author¡ty, the purpose of which ¡s to ensure compliance with conditions precedent

to the grant¡ng of funds. Any liability for reimbursement which may arise as the result of these audits ¡s nol believed to be malerial.

NOTE 21 - FUND BALANCE

As of June 30, 2015, the fund balance is comprised of the follow¡ng:

D,ébt Capital other
General Head Start Service Loans lmpfovement Governmental

Fund Balance Fund Fu¡d Fund Fund Fund Fun

Bestricted lor:
Publ¡cworks$$$$$$201,135$201,135
Health and Welfare '151,656 15'1,656

- 2,894,497 - 750,270 3,644,767

1 ,261 ,264 - 1 ,261 ,264

. 4,800,000 4,800,000

General Governmenl 359,744 - 359,744

Public Safety 21,607 - 21,607

Public Works 329,247 - 329,247

Capital outlays
Debt Seruice

committed lori
Capital Outlays

Ass¡gned lor:

Culture
Becreation

25520 25,520
7,U1 - 7,341

unassigned 2.619.203 2.619.203

TotalFund Balanc€ Si36a66ll § 120t264 L¿89+192 ¡-4.800.000 l-lJft?.001 §lít421J85
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NOTE 22 - PRIOR PERIOD ANUSIIIEIT

A, GOVERNI,IEIÍ wlDE FINANCIAL STAIEIIE]ÜTS

The lollowing restatemenb have been made in the govemment wide financial stalemenb, which are reported as an

adiuslment to the beginning net posilion:

fhsc¡iotion

Net posiüon - beginning

Cumulativs eflect ol application of GASB 68,

net pens¡on l¡abil¡ty

Govemmental
Activities

$ s5,963,147

(39,019,792)

Netposition-beginning,asrestated $ tq919¡q1
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Budoeted Amounts
Odqinal Final

Vañance with
ActualAmounts FinalBudget

(BudgetaryBas¡s) Positive
(SeeNoteA) (Negative)

BEVET.IUES:

Property taxes

Mun¡cipal l¡cense taxes
Sales and use taxes

Charges for services

State contributions

Licenses and permits

lnterest, f¡nes and penalt¡es

Oher revenues

Total fevenues

EXPENDÍTURES, ENCUTIBRAT.ICES AI,ID

OTHER FII{ANCIÍ{G USES:

Current:
General govemment

Public safe§
Publ¡c works

Cufture

Recrealion

Health and welfare
Transfers to other funds

Total expenditur€s, encumbrances and othel
ñnancing uses

EXCESS (DEFtCtENCY) OF REVEilUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPEND]TURES, ENCUMERAI{CES

At{D OTHER FTNANC|NG SOURCES (USES) S--------------- S,--------------= S- jJSIZE $lJ5l-Zt1

$ 3,988,877
1,868,000
1,493,725

681,780
7,065,987

211,000
275,000

1.178.127

16.762.496

8,387,345
951,524

5,338,462
282,604

675,117
750,8,U
376.600

16.762.496

$ 3,988,877
1,868,000
1,493,725

681,780
7,065,987

21 1,000

275,000
1.178,127

r6.762.496

8,503,270
1,045,384

5,140,635
246,314
699,,U9
750,8,14

376.600

16.762.496

$ 4,162,690

2,030,794
1,499,486

834,896
7,055,009

751,956

352,217
179.338

16.866.386

7,435,762
1,029,137

4,663,785
255,036
660,285
708,133

362.505

15.114.6,1Í,

$ 173,813
't62,794

5,761

153,1 16

(10,978)

540,956
n,217

(998.789)

103.890

1,067,508
16,247

476,850

18,7221
39,164
42,711

14.095

1.647.853
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTÁN

NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE. GENERAL FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE A - EXPLANATION OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN BUDGETARY INFLOWS AND OUTFLOWS AND GAAP
REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Explanat¡on ol D¡ffer€nces:

Sources/infl ows of resources:
Actual amounts (budgetary basis)'available for appropriat¡on" from the budgetary comparison schedule $ 1 6,866,3S6
Differences-budget to GMP
Revenues reclassif¡cation lor budget bas¡s 191.974)
Total revenues and ofier financ¡ng sources as reported on the statemenl of revenues, expenditures, and

changes in lund balances sl6,Zl,4j2
Uses/outff ows of rcsources:
Actual amounts (budgetary bas¡s)'total charges to appropriations' from the budgetary comparison schedule $ 1S,114,6,13

Diff erences.budget to GMP:
Prior year expenditure are not outflows of budgetary resources, bul are expendilure for financia¡ purposes 2j1,257
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered, but not received, are reported in the year the order is

placed for budgetary reporting purposes (993,000)
Transfer to other funds are outflows of budgetary resources but are not expenditure for financial reportingpuDoses (362,505)
Total expenditures and other financing uses as reported on the statement of revenues, expend¡tures, and

changes in fund balances S 14,570.395

NOTE B - STEWARDSHIP, C0tilPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABtLtTy

BUDGETARY CONTROL

The Munic¡pal¡ty's annual budget is prepared on the budgetary basis ol accounting, wh¡ch is not in accordance w¡th GMp, and
represents departmenlal appropriations recommended by the Mayor and approved by the Mun¡cipal Leg¡slature prior lo the
beginning of the l¡scal year. Amendments to the budget require the approval of the Municipal Legisiature. Translers of
appropriations with¡n the budgel, known as Mayor's Besolutions, do not requ¡re the approval of the Municipal Legislature.

The Municipality prepares ils annual budget including the operations of the generalfund.

For budgetary puposes, encumbrance accounting is used. The encumbrances (i.e., purchase orders, contracts) are considered
expenditures when incurred. FoI GMP report¡ng purposes, encumbrances outstanding at year.end are reporled as reservat¡ons
of ,und balances and do not const¡tute expendilures or liabilities because the comm¡tments w¡ll be honored during the
subsequent year.

The unencumbered balance of any appropr¡at¡on at the end of the fiscal year will lapse al the end of such liscal year. Other
approprialions, mainly capital proiect approprial¡ons, are continuing accounts for which the Municipal Legislature has aulhorized
that an unspent balance from the prior year be carried fonrard and made available for cunent spendingl

The annual budget as presented ¡n the Budgetary Comparison Schedule-General Fund is the budget ordinance at June g0,
2015 representing the original budget. There were no supplemental appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2015.
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COillilOl'¡WEALTH OF PUERTO R|CO

IIUilICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASNÁN

PUERTO RICO GOVERNIIENT EIIPLOYEES REnREilENT SYSIEII
SCHEDULE OF THE I¡IUNICIPALITY'S PROPORNONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILTTY

FtscAL YEAR 201+201s

Municipality's prcpodion of he nel pension l¡ab¡lity

Municipalit/s pmporlionate share of he net pen¡on l¡abil¡ty

M unicipality's coreredemplope payoll

Municipalily's prcportionate share of he net pension liabilityas a

percentage of he cowred-emplope payoll

2015

0.14148o/.

$ ,1403

_tr,5r?5r

35.210/"

Plan fiduciarynet posiüon as a percenhge of he total pension liability 0.42o/o

The arDunb presenbd br ñe ¡scal year 2014.2015 were detsrrined by an actuarhl vafualon.

GASB 68 requked s.rpplerEnhry hbrrafon b notavaihble br bcalyears prior b 201S.

lnbrnalon fu fulJre years wil be added prGspedvev.
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See accompanying notes to the basic financial slatemenls.



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALIW OF SAN SEBASNÁN

PUERTO RICO GOVERNIIE}TT EMPLOYEES RETIREI,IEl{T SYSTEM

SCHEDULE OF THE IIUNICIPALITY'S CONTRIBUTION

FISCAL YEAR M1+2015

20f5

Contractually required contibution $ 370,829

Contdbutions in relalion to he contractually required contibuüon (370,829)

Contribution defi c ¡ency (excess)

M unicipalily's cowredcmplope payoll

$

$2,597,75r

Municipalily's contibutions as a percenhge of he corered€mployee

payroll 14275o/o

The arDunb presentsd br te lscal year 2014-2015 were debrrined by an acttar¡al vahaÍon.

GASB 68 required upplerEnbry hbrrB¡on b not ava¡able br bcal years pr¡or b 2015.

lnbrnafon br futre years w¡l be added prospedvely.

See accompanying notes to the basic f¡nancial statements.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPOBTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor and Members of the
Munic¡pal Assembly
San Sebastián, Puerto R¡co

:. U-7 7

We have audited, in accordance w¡th the audit¡ng standards generally accepted in the Un¡ted States
ofAmericaandthestandardSapplicabletofinancialauditscontainedinGovemmentAadit¡ng
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financ¡al statements bf the
govemmental activities, the business{ype act¡v¡t¡es, each major fund, and the aggregate remáiñing
fund information of Municipality of San Sebastián, Puerto R¡co as of and for the year ended Jufi30,, -

2015, and the related notes to the financ¡al staiements, wh¡ch collect¡vely comprise Municipafit! of .:,,

San Sebast¡án, Puerto Rico's basic financ¡al statements, and have ¡ssued our report thereon dated
March 23, 2016. The report on governmental act¡v¡i¡es was adverse because the Municipality did not
record its proport¡onate share of its net pension l¡ab¡l¡ty, pens¡on expense, and related note
disclosures with respect to ils participation in the state employee retirement system pens¡on plan.

lnternal Control Over Financial Report¡ng

ln plann¡ng and pedorming our audit of the f¡nanc¡al statements, we considered Municipali§ of San
Sebast¡án, Puerto Rico's internal control over financ¡al report¡ng (¡ntemal control) to determ¡ne lhe
aud¡t procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the l¡nancial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opin¡on on the
effectiveness oI Municipali§ of San Sebastián, Puerto R¡co's ¡ntemal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an op¡n¡on on the effect¡veness of Munic¡pality of San Sebast¡án, Puerto Rico's intemal
control.

A def¡ciency in internal control exists when the design or operat¡on of a control does not allow
management or employees, ¡n the normal course of perlorming the¡r ass¡gned functions, to prevent,
or deteci and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combinat¡on of deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there is a reasonable possib¡l¡ty that a
material m¡sstatement of the entity's financial statements w¡ll not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely bas¡s. A signil¡cant deficiency is a deficiency, or a comb¡nation of deficiencies,
¡n ¡ntemal control that is less severe than a mater¡al weakness, yet important enough to merit
attent¡on by those charged with govemance.

Our cons¡derat¡on of ¡ntemal control was for the l¡m¡ted purpose described in the first paragraph of
this sect¡on and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, signil¡cant deficienc¡es. Given these l¡m¡tat¡ons, dur¡ng our aud¡t we d¡d not ¡dent¡fy
any def¡cienc¡es ¡n ¡nternal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been ¡dent¡f¡ed.



Compl¡ance and Other Matters

As part of obtain¡ng reasonable assurance about whether Municipality ol San Sebast¡án, Puerto
R¡co's f¡nanc¡al statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tesls of its
compliance with certa¡n provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompl¡ance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination ol linancial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provis¡ons was not an
ob¡ect¡ve of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an op¡n¡on. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or olher matters that are required lo be reported under
Gove m ment Aud¡ti n g Standard s.

Purpose of th¡s Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control and
compliance and the results of that test¡ng, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
ent¡ty's intemal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an aud¡t performed in
accordance wilh Govemment Auditing Standards in considering the entity's intemal control and
compliance. Accordingly, th¡s communication ¡s not suitable for any other purpose.

LICENSE # 35 - IN FORCE

Yauco, Puerto Rico
March 23,20.l6

Stamp #204748 was atl¡xed to
the original report
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REOUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR 4.133

Honorable Mayor and Members of the
Mun¡c¡pal Assembly
San Sebastián, Puerto R¡co

Report on Compliance for Each Maior Federal Program

We have audited Municipali§ of San Sebast¡án, Puerto Rico's compl¡ance w¡th the types of
compl¡ance requirements described in lhe OMB Circular A-133 Compl¡ance Supplement llr€,l could
have a direct and material effect on each of Municipal¡ty of San Sebastián, Puerto R¡co's major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015. Municipality of San Sebastián, Puerto Rico's
maior lederal programs are identified ¡n the summary of auditofs results section of lhe
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

M an agement's Respon si bi I ity

Management ¡s responsible for compliance with the requ¡rements ol laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants appl¡cable to its federal programs.

Aud ito r's Respon s ib i I ity

Our responsib¡l¡ty ¡s lo express an opinion on compliance for each of Munic¡pality of San Sebast¡án,
Puerto R¡co's major lederal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requ¡rements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compl¡ance in accordance w¡th aud¡t¡ng standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to f¡nanc¡al audits
conta¡ned in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of ihe United
States and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Govemments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Those standards and OMB C¡rcular A-133 requ¡re that we plan and perform the aud¡t to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requ¡rements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effecl on a major federal program occurred.
An aud¡t includes examining, on a lesl basis, evidence about Municipality of San Sebastián, Puerto
R¡co's compliance with those requirements and perform¡ng such other procedures as we considered
necessary ¡n the c¡rcumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis lor our opinion on compl¡ance for each major
federal program. However, our aud¡t does not provide a legal determination of Mun¡c¡pal¡ty of San
Sebastián, Puerto R¡co's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

ln our opinion, Municipality of San Sebast¡án, Puerto Rico, complied, in all material respects, w¡th
the types ol compliance requ¡rements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on each of its major lederal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015.



Report on lnternal Control Over Compl¡ance

Management of Municipali§ of San Sebastián, Puerto Rico, is responsible for establish¡ng and
maintaining effective intemal control over compl¡ance w¡th the types of compl¡ance requ¡rements
referred to above. ln planning and performing our audit of compl¡ance, we cons¡dered Munic¡pality of
San Sebastián, Puerto Rico's ¡ntemal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each maior federal program to determ¡ne the aud¡ting
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of express¡ng an opin¡on on
compl¡ance for each major federal program and to test and report on intemal control over
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of express¡ng an
opin¡on on the efect¡veness of intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
op¡n¡on on lhe effectiveness of Municipali§ of San Sebastián, Puerto R¡co's ¡ntemal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over ampliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compl¡ance does nol allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing the¡r
assigned funct¡ons, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compl¡ance
requirement of a federal program on a t¡mely basis. A mater¡al weakness in ¡ntemal control over
compliance is a defic¡ency, or combinalion of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable poss¡b¡l¡ty that mater¡al noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a t¡mely bas¡s.
A sign¡f¡cant deficiency ¡n internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficienc¡es, in intemal conlrol over compliance w¡th a type of compl¡ance requiremenl of a federal
program that is less severe than a malerial weakness ¡n intemal control over compliance, yet
¡mportant enough to merit attention by those charged w¡th govemance.

Our consideration of internal conirol over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not des¡gned to identify all deficiencies in ¡nternal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or s¡gn¡ficant deficiencies. We did not ident¡fy any
delic¡enc¡es in intemal control over compl¡ance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may ex¡st that have not been identified.

Report on Schedule ol Expenditures ol Federal Awards Requ¡red by OMB Circular A-133

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activit¡es, the business-type activ¡ties,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Mun¡c¡pal¡ty of San Sebastián,
Puerto B¡co, as of and for the year ended June 30,2015, and the related noles to the financial
statemenis, which collectively comprise Mun¡c¡pality of San Sebastián, Puerto R¡co's bas¡c f¡nanc¡al
statemenis. We issued our report thereon dated March 23,2016, wh¡ch conta¡ned a qualified opinion
on l¡nanc¡al slatemenls of the govemmental activities because we were unable to obta¡n suffic¡ent
appropriate ev¡dence of the amounts reported regarding the Mun¡c¡pal¡ty's partic¡pat¡on in the Puerto
Rico Employee Ret¡rement System. Our reporl included unmodified opin¡ons on the bus¡ness-type
aci¡v¡ties, each major fund, and the aggregate remain¡ng fund information. Our audit was conducted
for the purpose of form¡ng opinions on the financ¡al statemenls that collect¡vely comprise the bas¡c
f¡nanc¡al statements. The accompany¡ng schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for
purposes of additional analys¡s as required by OMB Circular A-133 and ¡s nol a requ¡red part ol the
basic financ¡al stalements. Such information is the respons¡bility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the bas¡c
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the audit¡ng procedures appl¡ed ¡n the
audit of the l¡nanc¡al slatements and certain additional procedures, includ¡ng comparing and
reconcil¡ng such ¡nformat¡on directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic f¡nancial statements or to the basic financ¡al statements themselves, and other add¡tional
procedures in accordance w¡th auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. ln our opin¡on, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated ¡n all material
respects ¡n relation to the bas¡c f¡nancial statements as a whole.
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MUNICIPALIW OF SAN SEBASTIAN

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

FEDERAL GRAi{TOB,TPAS9T}IROUGH OR CLUSTER NTLE

FEDERAL PAS$THROUGH
CFDA IDEñMFICATION FEDERAL

NUIJ|BER NUT'BER EXPENDIÍURES

U.S. fhoartmeni ol Aoricultur€
D¡rect Programs:

Rural Renlal Housing Loan (Section 515 Direct Loan) 10.415 $ 511,408
Pass-ülrough Puerlo Rico Education Department

Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 CCC-013 355.476

Subtotal Department ol Agriculture 866.884

U.S. [hpartment ol Defense
Pass-through Puerlo Rico office of Public Security

10«) LESO Program (DOD excess property program) 12.999 422.228

U.S, Department of Housino and Urban Develooment

Direct Programs:

Section I Housing Ass¡stance Payments 14.195 609,749

Community Development Block Grant Program, Entitlement Granls 14.218 855,303

Section I Housing Choice Voucher Program 14.871 701,978

Pass-Through Slate - Puerto Rico Department of Family

Emergency Shelter Granl Program 14.231 3,918

Pass-Through Stale - Puerlo Rico Public Hous¡ng Authorily

Public and lndian Housinq 14.195 41.467
2,212,415

Subtotal U.S. Dept. of Housing and Uóan Developmenl

U.S. Department of Health and Human Serv¡ccs
Pass-lhrough Puerto Rico Governor's Olfice of Child Services

and Cammunity:
Child Care and Development Block Granl Cluster 93.575 241-2015-28 232,328

Pass-ürough Puerto Rico Governo/s Oflice of Child Services

and Community Development
Head Starl Program 93.600 02CH994-06 3.300.879

SubtotalDept. of Health and Human Services 3.533.207

U.S. DeDartment ol Homeland Sccu¡itv
Pass-through Puerto Rim Govemo/s Office of Public Securily Affairs

Disaster Grants-Public Assistance 97.036 64.658

TOTAL EXPE}IDITUBES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

See notes lo schedule of expend¡tures of federal awards.

§__2,099J9



COMI'ONWEALTH OF PUERTO BICO

MUNICIPALIW OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

JUNE 30,2015

NOTE A . BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule ol expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of he Mun¡cipali§ and is
presented on ihe modified accrual basis ol accounting. Expenditures are recogn¡zed rvhen he related liability is incurred.

The ¡nfomation in üis schedule is presenled in accordance with the requirements of oMB Circular A-133, 'Audits ol
States, Local Govemments and Nonprofit Organizations". Therefore, some amounls presented in this schedule may ditfer

lrom the amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the bas¡c f¡nanc¡al statements.

NOTE B. FEDERAL CFDA NUÍIIBER

The Catalog of Federal Domest¡c Ass¡stance (CFDA) Number is a program ¡dentilication number determined by üe OMB

Catalog of Federal Domeslic Assislance. The l¡rst two digits identify the lederal deparlment or agency that administers the
program and the last úrree numbers are assigned by numerical sequence.

NOTE C. PAS$THROUGH ENTITY IDENÍIFYING NUMBER

Slale or local govemment redistributions of federal awards to he Mun¡cipalrty, known as lass-ürough awards', should be

treated by the Mun¡cipality as though lhey were received directly Irom the lederal govemment. OMB Circular A-133

requires the schedule to ¡nclude fie name of the pass-through entity and the identifying number assigned by üe pass-

lhrough entity for the federal awards received as a sub rec¡pient. Numbers ¡dent¡lied as lüA are not applicable and

numbers identified as lüAV are not ava¡lable.

I{OTE D. RECONCILIATION OF EXPENDITURES PRESEI{TED IN THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF

FEDERAL AWARDS T0 THE EXPET{DITUBES PRESEI'IIED lN THE BASIC FINANCIAL STAIEiIE¡iITS

Descriplion

10.415

10.558

r2.999
14.195

14.218
14.231
14.850

14.871

14.896
20.507

93.575
93.600
97.036

Total f ederal awards expenditures

Oher
HeadStañ Govemment¡l

Fund Funds

$$
- 355,476

3,300,879

855,303
3,918

41,467

701,978

232,328

64.65;

2,255,128
1.508.932

$3J04.060

3,300,879

Business-Type
Aclivit¡es

$ 511,408

609,749

1,121,157
(511.408)

§_009J49

Non-Federal Expenditures and changes in basis ol accounting

Total expenditures, fund statemenls $3300i29

The federal expend¡ture of Rural Rental Housing Loan (Section 515 D¡rect Loan, CFDA 10.415) ¡s a loan guarantee and do
not represent a cash award or expenditure for the fiscal year. Additionally, the 1033 LESO Program (DOD excess property

program) is a property transler award based on he assessed value of the property by he Munic¡pality and did not represent
a cash award or expenditure.



ColtlfrlONWEALTH OF PUERTO BICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAB ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

SECTIO]iI I - SUiTiIARY OF AUD]TORS' RESULTS

F¡nancial StaBn€nts

Typeofaudito/sreportissued: 
ffi.rr*roo,u*.. ffiffi

L¡m¡tat¡on

Business.Type Aclivilies Unmod¡fied

GeneralFund Unmodilied

Head Start Fund Unmod¡fied

oebl Service Fund Unmodified

Loans Fund Unmod¡fied

Capital lmprovements Funds Unmod¡l¡ed

AggregaleRemainingFundlnlormal¡on Unmod¡lied

Proprietary Fund Unmodilied

lntemal mntrol over financial reporling:

. Significanl control defic¡ency ¡dentified?

. Material rveakness (es) ¡dentif¡ed?

Normmpliance material to financial slalemenls noted?

Federal Awards

lntemal control over ma¡or programs:

. Signlicant control delic¡ency identif¡ed?

fl ves

! ves

I ves

I ves

Child and Adult Care Food Program

Section I Hous¡nq Ass¡stance Paymenls

Commun¡ty Developmenl Block Grant - Ent¡tlement Grants

Section I Hous¡ng Choice Vouche6 Program

Head Start Program

$300.000

l-xl Yes

END OF SECTION

I None reported

. Materialrcakness(es)identilied? fl ves Em

CFDA [umber Lame ol FcderulProgram or Clu3tsr.10.415 Rural RentalHousino Loanr0.4r5 Rural Rental Housing Loan
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COI¡ITIOI{WEALTH OF PUERTO BICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

.. Findlnorear 
Numbé-r

Finding
CFDA Ouestioned
Numbef co3r(s) comments

(1) Prior Audit Findings, fully conected or not noted during our audit:

None

(2) Prior Audit Findings, not corected or partially corrccted:

None.

(3) Corrective action laken is significantly differenl from corrective action previously reported:

None.

(4) Prior Audlt Flndin$, are no longar valid:

None.

END OF SCHEDULE
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